
 
 
 
 
A Meeting of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD will 
be held at the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40 
1BN on THURSDAY 8 DECEMBER 2016 AT 5.00 PM 
 
 
 

 
Andy Couldrick 
Chief Executive 
Published on 30 November 2016 
 
 
 
 
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website. 

 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 



 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
Julian McGhee-Sumner WBC 
Dr Johan Zylstra NHS Wokingham CCG 
Keith Baker WBC 
Prue Bray WBC 
Nick Campbell-White Healthwatch 
Charlotte Haitham Taylor WBC 
Superintendent Rob France Community Safety Partnership 
Beverley Graves Business Skills and Enterprise Partnership 
Dr Lise Llewellyn Director of Public Health 
Nikki Luffingham NHS England 
Judith Ramsden Director of People Services 
Clare Rebbeck Voluntary Sector representative 
Stuart Rowbotham Director of Health and Wellbeing 
Katie Summers Director of Operations, Wokingham CCG 
Kevin Ward Place and Community Partnership Representative 
Dr Cathy Winfield NHS Wokingham CCG 
  

ITEM 
NO. 

WARD SUBJECT 
PAGE 
NO. 

    
41.    APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence 
 

    
42.    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 
October 2016. 

5 - 10 

    
43.    DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest 
 

    
44.    PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

To answer any public questions 
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of 
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.  
 
The Council welcomes questions from members of the 
public about the work of this Board. 
 
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can 
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the 
Board or an item which is on the Agenda for this 
meeting.  For full details of the procedure for 
submitting questions please contact the Democratic 
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to 
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions 

 

    
45.    MEMBER QUESTION TIME 

To answer any member questions 
 

    

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions


 

46.   None Specific UPDATE FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

To receive updates on the work of the following Health 

and Wellbeing Board members: 

 Business, Skills and Enterprise Partnership 

 Community Safety Partnership 

 Place and Community Partnership 

 Voluntary Sector 

 Healthwatch 

(20 mins) 

Verbal 
Report 

    
47.   None Specific HEALTH AND WELLBEING DASHBOARD 

To receive the Health and Wellbeing dashboard. (15 
mins) 

11 - 22 

    
48.   None Specific BETTER CARE FUND EVALUATION 

To receive a report regarding the Better Care Fund 
Evaluation (15 mins) 

23 - 28 

    
49.   None Specific BERKSHIRE TRANSFORMING CARE 

PARTNERSHIP - NOVEMBER 2016 - UPDATE TO 
WOKINGHAM HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
To receive the Berkshire Transforming Care 
Partnership - November 2016 Update to Wokingham-
Health and Wellbeing Board. (15 mins) 

29 - 36 

    
50.   None Specific REVISED PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT FOR 

WOKINGHAM COMMUNITY HEALTH & SOCIAL 
CARE (CHASC) - (NEIGHBOURHOOD CLUSTERS, 
SELF-CARE AND PREVENTION) BCF 08 PROJECT 
To receive the Revised Project Initiation Document for 
Wokingham Community Health & Social Care 
(CHASC) - (Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care and 
Prevention) BCF 08 Project. (15 mins)  

37 - 90 

    
51.   None Specific FORWARD PROGRAMME 

To consider the Board’s work programme for the 
remainder of the municipal year. (5 mins) 

91 - 94 

   
Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent  
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any 
other items to consider under this heading 

 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 

 
Madeleine Shopland Principal Democratic Services Officer 
Tel 0118 974 6319 
Email madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE  
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2016 FROM 5.00 PM TO 6.15 PM 
 
Present 
 
Julian McGhee-Sumner WBC 
Dr Johan Zylstra NHS Wokingham CCG 
Keith Baker WBC 
Prue Bray WBC 
Charlotte Haitham Taylor WBC 
Superintendent Rob France Community Safety Partnership 
Beverley Graves Business Skills and Enterprise 

Partnership 
Dr Lise Llewellyn Director of Public Health 
Judith Ramsden Director of Children's Services 
Clare Rebbeck Voluntary Sector representative 
Katie Summers Director of Operations, Wokingham CCG 
Stuart Rowbotham Director of Health and Wellbeing 
Jeremy Sharpe (substituting Kevin Ward)  
Jim Stockley (substituting Nick Campbell-
White) 

 

 
Also Present: 
Madeleine Shopland Principal Democratic Services Officer 
Darrell Gale Consultant in Public Health 
Patricia Knight Public Health 
 
28. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were submitted from Nick Campbell-White, Nikki Luffingham, Kevin 
Ward and Dr Cathy Winfield. 
 
29. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
The Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 11 August 2016 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
It was noted that the new Development Officer recruited by Involve covered Bracknell and 
Wokingham.  
 
30. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
31. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
There were no public questions. 
 
32. MEMBER QUESTION TIME  
There were no Member questions. 
 
33. UPDATES FROM BOARD MEMBERS  
The Board was updated on the work of a number of Board members.  During the 
discussion of this item the following points were made: 
 

5

Agenda Item 42.



 

Business, Skills and Enterprise Partnership: 
 

 Beverley Graves advised Board members that the targets relating to those seeking 
information, advice and guidance were being overachieved.  However, the target 
‘Work Experience – 5 days with same employer’ was underperforming, achieving 
0.9% against a target of 3.2%. 

 The way NEETs were reported would be changing.  The focus would be on those 
aged under 18.  

 The Board was updated on the ‘Number of over 50s clients seeking information, 
advice and guidance from Wokingham Job Support.’  Dr Zylstra questioned how 
this compared with the previous year and was informed that the figures were slightly 
lower this year. 

 
Community Safety Partnership: 
 

 Superintendent France indicated that crime in the Borough remained low.  An 
increase in sexual crimes and violence against the person was being seen, 
however, it was thought that this was largely the result of increased reporting as 
opposed to an increase in incidents.  Incidents of burglary were reducing. 

 A long term focus of the Community Safety Partnership was the increased risk to 
vulnerable people around fraud.  In response to a question regarding online fraud, 
Superintendent France explained that frauds were referred to Action Fraud but that 
if there were local lines of enquiry these would be investigated locally. 

 Clare Rebbeck reminded the Board that Safer Place Scheme cards had recently 
been launched. 

 Councillor Bray commented that nationally there had been an increase in hate 
crime post Brexit and questioned whether this was the case in Wokingham.  
Superintendent France indicated that the situation was monitored but that there had 
not been requests for additional police response.  

 There had been incidents of people dressing as scary clowns within Thames Valley.  
Neighbourhood Policing would be working with schools and shops in an effort to 
reduce such incidents.  The Police had not spoken to perpetrators locally as 
incidents were often reported after the event.  

 
Place and Community Partnership: 
 

 The partnership had been discussing its relationship with the Health and Wellbeing 
Board with Stuart Rowbotham.  Stuart Rowbotham indicated that as part of the 
action plan for the recommendations of the Local Government Association Peer 
Review the structure of the sub partnerships would be reviewed. 

 
Voluntary Sector: 
 

 On 18 October a Benefits Workshop would be held to discuss the implications of 
the benefits cap that would come into effect in November.  50 people so far had 
booked a place.  Councillor Haitham Taylor questioned whether the workshop 
would also cover budgeting in light of the likely increase in the cost of food.  Clare 
Rebbeck commented that the Citizens Advice Bureau offered such workshops. 

 Involve was moving offices on 31 October.  It was holding its Annual General 
Meeting on 20 October and Board members were welcome to attend. 

 The community awareness events for the next year were being set.  The first, ‘Let’s 
talk cancer’, would be held in January.   

6



 

 Events to celebrate volunteering and the launch of the new care provider would also 
be held. 

 
Healthwatch Wokingham Borough: 
 

 The Q2 report was being finalised. 

 Healthwatch Wokingham Borough had recently published a report regarding access 
to dental practices within the Borough for those who were hearing impaired.  Some 
positive comments had been received in response.  

 Consideration would be given to collaborating with other Healthwatches and local 
organisations such as More Arts to maximise resources.  

 
RESOLVED:  That the updates from Board members be noted. 
 
34. BERKSHIRE WEST, OXFORDSHIRE, BUCKINGHAMSHIRE SUSTAINABILITY 

AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN UPDATE  
Stuart Rowbotham updated Board members on the Berkshire West, Oxfordshire, 
Buckinghamshire Sustainability and Transformation Plan. 
 
During the discussion of this item the following points were made: 
 

 NHS England had requested that Health and Wellbeing Boards not publish iterative 
plans at this stage.  

 Katie Summers advised that NHS England had released planning guidance on the 
matter.  The possibility of the plan areas being further sub divided had been raised 
which would be investigated. 

 In response to a question from Councillor Bray, Dr Llewellyn clarified that the 
deadline for the next plan submission was 21 October. 

 Stuart Rowbotham indicated that there had been changes to the engagement 
model and that local authorities would now be invited to a quarterly briefing as 
opposed to being part of the leadership model. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the update on the Berkshire West, Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan be noted. 
 
35. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION UPDATE  
Stuart Rowbotham updated the Board on the progress of health and social care 
integration. 
 
During the discussion of this item the following points were made: 
 

 The Board was taken through the Better Care Fund on a page. 

 The WISH team was well embedded and delivering on a challenging plan to reduce 
the number of delayed transfers in care.  Wokingham was 25% ahead of target 
which was unprecedented.   

 Delivery of the Non Elective Admissions Plan was a challenge.  However, 
Wokingham was still rated number two for performance in the country.  

 Neighbourhood Clusters had been renamed Community Health and Social Care 
(CHASC).  Stuart Rowbotham outlined the drivers for the CHASC, the financial 
benefits and the benefits to people and professionals.  The financial benefits would 
need to be system wide.  It was noted that the return of interest, funded by the 
Better Care Fund and existing staffing costs, was 134%. 

7



 

 The Board would receive a report on the progress of the CHASC at a future 
meeting. 

 Board members agreed that it was important that Wokingham celebrated its 
successes.  Wokingham was viewed as a good role model with regards to health 
and social care integration.  

 
RESOLVED:  That the update on the integration of health and social care be noted.  
 
36. BETTER CARE FUND (BCF) ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16  
The Board noted the Better Care Fund Annual Report 2015/16. 
 
During the discussion of this item the following points were made: 
 

 The report provided a high level overview of performance against the budget of the 
Better Care Fund for 2015/16 in accordance with the Section 75 agreement.   

 Stuart Rowbotham commented that some Better Care investments such as the 
Step up, Step Down and domiciliary care projects had not worked as well as had 
been hoped for and that consideration was being given to future investments. 

 Councillor Haitham Taylor suggested that when the next iteration of the Better Care 
Fund Plan was produced, that the plans of similar Health and Wellbeing Boards be 
looked at for examples of good practice.  She indicated that the Red Cross had 
recently undertaken a piece of work on Health and Wellbeing Boards and the Better 
Care Fund. 

 Dr Llewellyn emphasised that Wokingham was a leading example of the integration 
of health and social care. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 
37. HEALTH AND WELLBEING DASHBOARD  
The Board considered the Health and Wellbeing Dashboard.  Stuart Rowbotham indicated 
that the dashboard was the first iteration in its current form.  
 
During the discussion of this item the following points were made: 
 

 Councillor Bray commented that the colour coding was helpful and that the 
dashboard was more accessible and easier to understand.  Patricia Knight was 
thanked for her work on the dashboard. 

 Judith Ramsden indicated that there would be a discussion at the next Children and 
Young People’s Partnership meeting about priorities which could highlight the KPIs 
which would have the greatest impact on commissioning decisions.  

 Judith Ramsden went on to state that it was important to link the headings to 
particular priorities.  In addition she felt that it was important that the measures 
relating to the NHS Trust Board workforce were more specific as to which elements 
of the workforce were under consideration.  Judith Ramsden also suggested that it 
would be helpful to monitor worklessness within families where both parents were 
not in employment.  

 Katie Summers updated the Board on the ‘Number of patients per GP’ and General 
Practice Workforce vacancy rate for ‘General Practitioners (GPs).’  In Wokingham 
there were 1494 patients per GP compared to the average for England of 1364 
patients per GP.  This information was updated on a six monthly basis.  The 
vacancy rate for GPs as at March was 6%.  Board members were advised that 

8



 

many practices in the Borough were also employing other types of professionals 
such as pharmacists and paramedics.   

 It was clarified that the direction of travel for the ‘Delayed transfers of care’ measure 
should be shown as an increasing instead of decreasing.  Councillor Haitham 
Taylor suggested that context could be added to the direction of travel section in 
future to add further clarity. 

 Councillor Bray noted that ‘House Prices’ were measured and requested that 
information be provided regarding rent rates.   

 Some Board members asked that the commentary be included with the heading for 
the individual measures.  

 
RESOLVED:  That the Health and Wellbeing dashboard be noted.  
 
38. FORWARD PROGRAMME  
The Board discussed the Forward Programme for the remainder of the municipal year. 
 
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:  
 

 The Chairman reminded the Board that there would be a breakfast meeting on 31st 
October 8.45am to discuss refreshing the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 Judith Ramsden indicated that she would bring an update on the Disability Strategy 
to the December meeting as opposed to the SEND Self-Assessment & Action Plan. 

 A Health and Wellbeing Board Manager had not yet been appointed. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the forward programme be noted.  
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Health  and Wellbeing Board 

Could not be calculated      --- 

-Increasing/Getting worse -Increasing/Getting better               -Decreasing/getting Worse         -Decreasing/Getting better 

-No significant change                     -Increasing                            - Decreasing  

Area Performance measures 
 

Target Data 
Q1 2016-2017 

Actual  Data 
Q1 2016-2017 

DoT 

Housing Number of affordable dwellings completed  
 

58 52  

Homelessness ( Temporary Accommodation) 
 

60 44( lower is 
better) 

 

Homelessness( decisions, part V11 of the Housing Act 1996) 
made within 45 working days 
 

70 71  

Housing Register( Waiting List) 
 

90 100  

Children’s 
services 

Parent/Carer mental health issue in a child and family 
assessment 
 

N/A 18.6% --- 

Education(Narrowing the Gap) 
 

18.9% 25%  

Physical 
 Activity 

SHINE participants, for adults 60 plus living in Wokingham  
 

495 1018  

Leisure centres attendance numbers 
 

141,303 140,046  

Public  
Health 

Adult Obesity Rate, those with a BMI > 30 8%(2014 
figures)  

N/A  
Better Care 
Fund 

Non elective (unplanned) admissions often through A & E, which 
include at least one overnight stay. 
 

3,102 3,164  

11

A
genda Item

 47.



Delayed transfers of care 
 

924 697  

Wokingham 
CCG 

General Practice Workforce vacancy rate for General 
Practitioners (GPs) 

N/A N/A --- 

Number of  patients  per GP N/A N/A --- 

Trust Board 
Reports 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  NHS Foundation 
Trust Workforce, expressed as a % vacancy rate 
 

5% 7.5% ( June 
2016) 

   --- 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  NHS Foundation 
Trust Workforce, expressed as a  % RBFT workforce turnover 
 

3% 3.6%  

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a % vacancy rate 
 

<10% 12.7% ( May 
2016) 

 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a % of RBHFT 
workforce turnover 
 

15.2% 17.1% 
annual(May 
2016) 

 

Care Quality 
Commission 
(CQC)  

Independent inspections and ratings for Berkshire Healthcare 
NHS Foundation Trust. 

For medical 
and social 
care 
providers to 
be rated as 
good or 
outstanding 

Varied. Most 
rated good 
or above 

 

Berkshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation 
Trust (BHFT) 

Referrals to Social Care Rapid Response 75 N/A  

Waiting time exceeding 20 weeks for Tier 2 Children and 
Adolescent mental Health Service, CAMHS. 

73% ( May 
2016) 

Being Set --- 

Economic 
Profile 

Unemployment ( model based) , measured as a % of 
economically active over 16 years 

N/A 3%  

12



 

Unemployment, Claimant Count, on out of work benefits 
 

N/A 0.5% ( June 
2016) 

 

Number of young people not in education, employment or 
training( NEET)  calculated as number plus 8% ( assumed not 
known) 

N/A 2.1% ( June 
2016) 

 

Earnings by residence, measured as gross weekly pay of full 
time workers 
 

N/A £ 679.20  

House prices 
 

N/A £411,306  
( May 2016) 

  

Domestic Abuse 
Strategy Group 

Number of Domestic Incidents reported to Thames Valley Police 
-Recordable Crimes (Domestic Qualifier only) 
 

N/A 135  
 

Number of Domestic Incidents reported to Thames Valley Police 
– Non - Recordable Crimes (Domestic Qualifier only) 
 

N/A 341  

Number of cases reviewed by Wokingham Borough MARAC 
 

N/A 13  

Number of  repeat cases reviewed by Wokingham Borough 
MARAC 
 

N/A 19%  

Adult Social 
Care 

Number of referrals to the Community Navigators Programme 
 

N/A 42  

Transport Green routes and cycle path completion 
 

None N/A   --- 

 

References:   NHS England, 2015. Monthly Delays Transfer of Care Situation Record, Definitions and Guidance  

NHS Guidance, 2012. Rapid Response Services: intermediate tier, multidisciplinary health and social care service.  

NHS Digital, 2016. General and Personal Medical Services, England 2005-2015, as at 30 September, Provisional Experimental statistics  

13



Commentary- Area:  Housing 

Number of affordable dwellings completed 
This indicator describes the number of built self-contained unit of accommodation. Dwellings can be houses, flats, bungalows and 
maisonettes. The target within the Housing Strategy 2015 – 2018 is to complete 1000 new affordable homes. Whilst the number of 
completions was lower than expected in 2015/16, as development progresses within the larger SDL sites over 500 completions are 
anticipated during 2017/18. This year (2016/17) a further 53 completions in Q2, 57 in Q3 and 147 in Q4, on target to achieving over 
230 completions. Predictions are liable to change and are based on the best available information provided by Registered Providers 
and developers at the beginning of each year.  Officers hold quarterly meetings with the RPs to closely monitor the delivery 
programme.  
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly 
 

Senior Lead:  Director HWB 

Homelessness ( Temporary Accommodation) 
Council seek to avoid placements out of Borough (OBPs) wherever possible due to the disruption to peoples’ lives. OBPs are more 
expensive than other forms of temporary accommodation and so are minimised wherever possible. Going forward WBC have a 
strategy for increasing the portfolio of in-Borough provision and it is anticipated that in coming years the need for OBPs will reduce. 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead: Director HWB 

Homelessness( decisions, part V11 of the Housing Act 1996) made within 45 working days 
Time taken to make a formal decision under Part VII of the Housing Act 1996 has a bearing on the customer experience and also on 
the council’s finances and use of resources. The target of 70% for 16/17 has been set taking into account the recent increase in 
homelessness numbers and expected continuation of high numbers. 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead: Director HWB 

Housing Register( Waiting List) 
For people applying for housing on medical grounds, timeliness in decision-making about priority is crucial so that where priority is 
awarded the start of the process of finding a family a more suitable home can begin as early as is possible. 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead: Director HWB 

 

 

 

 

 

14



 Commentary- Area:  Children’s Services 

Parent/Carer mental health issue in a child and family assessment 
This indicator is not monitored on a national level by the Department for Education and it has not previously been monitored locally, 
therefore, a target has not been agreed. 
There is no guidance to ascertain if high or low is good or bad performance. 
Wokingham has decreased the % of parent/carers with mental health issues identified during a Child and Family Assessment, however, 
for the national combined indicator, which includes mental health of the child and other members of the household, Wokingham is 
higher than Statistical Neighbours and South East Region performance. 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly  Senior Lead: Director, Children’s Services 

Education (Narrowing the Gap) 
Reduce the education gap at key stage 2 between disadvantaged and other pupils for reading, writing and maths. Performance gaps in 
WBC is greater than national but performance of WBC Disadvantaged pupils is already in most cases above their national peers    
 

Reporting Frequency: Annual 
 

Senior Lead: Director, Children’s Services 

 

  

15



Commentary- Area:  Physical Activity 

SHINE participants, for adults 60 plus living in Wokingham 
This physical activity programme for adults 60 and over living in the Wokingham Borough is lead through the Sport and Leisure Team at 
WBC and returns revenue from the classes back to the council. It has been in place since 2000 and is a WBC initiative .Increased 
referrals are noted, and there are varied activities delivered throughout the Borough. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead:  Director HWB 

Leisure centres attendance numbers 
All leisure centres bring revenue into the council, managed by 1life with the contract management with sport and leisure. 
There is seasonal variation in the numbers using leisure centres. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead:  Director HWB 

 

 

Commentary-Area:  Public Health 

Adult Obesity Rate, those with a BMI > 30 
Wokingham Borough Council is better than both the national and the regional indicators, this reflects the effective coordination between 
public health, sport and leisure team and CCG. 
 
 

Reporting Frequency: Annual 
 
 

Senior Lead:  Director Berkshire Public Health 

 

  

16



Area: Better Care Fund 

Non Elective admissions : 
This indicator reflects the effective collaboration across the health and care system. There should be shared responsibility across the 
system so that all parts of the health and care system improve the quality of care and reduce the frequency and necessity for non-
elective admissions. (NHS England, 2015). 
Wokingham are slightly behind target, but with an improving position. The RRAT scheme is having a positive effect and is on target. 
WISH schemes are in their infancy, but expected to be on target. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead : CCG 

Delayed transfers of care : 
A delayed transfer of care from acute or non-acute (including community and mental health) care occurs when a patient is ready to 
depart from such care and is still occupying a bed. 
A patient is ready for transfer when:  
◦A clinical decision has been made that patient is ready for transfer AND  
◦A multi-disciplinary team decision has been made that patient is ready for transfer AND  
◦The patient is safe to discharge/transfer.  
Aim: 
Realise the opportunities of integrated working, brought about by Better Care Funding to reduce the number of delayed transfer of care. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 

Senior Lead: CCG/HWB 

 

Commentary- Area: CCG 

General Practice Workforce vacancy rate for General Practitioners (GPs) 
A survey is to be undertaken in Autumn 2016 

Reporting Frequency: 6 monthly Senior Lead : CCG 

Number of  patients  per GP 
A survey is to be undertaken in Autumn 2016 

Reporting Frequency:6  Monthly 
 

Senior Lead: CCG 

 

17



 

Commentary- Area: Trust Board Reports 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  NHS Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a % vacancy rate 
“There is an increase of approximately 25 increasing the total vacancies to 380 from 355. We are currently re-evaluating our recruitment 
and retention strategies to help reduce vacancy rates and turnover". Source Integrated Performance Report to Board of Directors July 
2016 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead : CCG 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  NHS Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a  % RBFT workforce turnover 
No commentary 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly 
 

Senior Lead: CCG 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a % vacancy rate 
Increase this month due to impacts from new investments and recruitment to posts taking place. Source Performance Report to Board 
of Directors July 2016 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead : CCG 

Recruitment and retention of Royal Berkshire  Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Workforce, expressed as a % of RBHFT 
workforce turnover 
Remained same as April 2016. The Trust has introduced incentives for services where it is hard to recruit and retain staff. Source 
Performance Report to Board of Directors July 2016 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead : CCG 

 

Commentary- Area: CQC 

Independent inspections and ratings for Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust. 
CQC is the independent regulator of health and social care in England. CQC monitor, inspect and regulate services to make sure they 
meet fundamental standards of quality and safety, reports including performance ratings are published to help people choose care. 
Inspections are implemented routinely and/or complaints are arisen. 
The aim is to have all health and social care providers to be rated good or above.  
 

Reporting Frequency: Based on inspections Senior Lead : CCG/ Director of HWB 

 

  

18



Commentary- Area: BHFT 

Referrals to Social Care Rapid Response 
The Rapid Response Service assesses, treats and supports the individual in their own home, avoiding an unnecessary and more costly 
admission into hospital or residential care.( NHS Guidance,2012,P1) 
Referral rates have been lower than anticipated, this is believed to be a result of staffing vacancies. Investment in this area is expected to 
see a significant increase in the numbers being referred. 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead : Director of HWB 

Waiting time exceeding 20 weeks for Tier 2 Children and Adolescent mental Health Service, CAMHS 
Although there are no current national standards, waiting time standards are being developed in line with 'Achieving better access to 
mental health services by 2020'. 
Children who are LAC are prioritised on the waiting list, this has a knock-on effect on the wait list. Management of tier 2 CAMHs has 
changed within BHFT, and a more enhanced service monitoring dataset is anticipated. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead: Director of Children’s Services/CCG 

 

Commentary- Area: Economic Profile 

Unemployment ( model based) , measured as a % of economically active over 16 years 
The lower the rate, the more people in employment 
 

Reporting Frequency: Annually Senior Lead : Director HWB 

Unemployment, Claimant Count, on out of work benefits 
The lower the rate, the more people in employment 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead: Director HWB 

Number of young people not in education, employment or training( NEET)  calculated as number plus 8% ( assumed not known) 
The lower the rate, the more people in employment, education or training. 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead: Director Children’s Services 

Earnings by residence, measured as gross weekly pay of full time workers 
The higher the amount, the wealthier the population is. 

Reporting Frequency: Annually  Senior Lead: Director Children’s Services 

House prices 
Higher property prices indicate an affluent population as well as demand for housing. 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead: Director Children’s Services 

 

19



Commentary- Area: Domestic Abuse Strategy Group 

Number of Domestic Incidents reported to Thames Valley Police -Recordable Crimes (Domestic Qualifier only) 
The number of crimes recorded by the Thames Valley Police (TVP), which are flagged as domestic abuse related. This is increasing in 
the Thames Valley Police Area, this reflects improved reporting and/or data accuracy, and required support is provided to more people. 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead : Community Safety Partnership 

Number of Domestic Incidents reported to Thames Valley Police – Non - Recordable Crimes (Domestic Qualifier only) 
The number of incidents recorded by the Thames Valley police (TVP), which are not classified as a crime, but flagged as domestic abuse 
related. This is increasing in the Thames Valley Police Area, this reflects improved reporting and/or data accuracy and required support is 
provided to more people. 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly Senior Lead: Community Safety Partnership 

Number of cases reviewed by Wokingham Borough MARAC 
The number of highest risk domestic abuse cases discussed at Wokingham MARAC during the reporting period. The increase reflects 
improved reporting and/or data accuracy, and required support is provided.  

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead: Community Safety Partnership 

Number of  repeat cases reviewed by Wokingham Borough MARAC 
 The percentage of Wokingham MARAC cases in the past 12 months, which have been cases at a previous Wokingham MARAC.    
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead: Community Safety Partnership 

 

 

Commentary- Area:  Adult Social Care 

Number of referrals to the Community Navigators Programme 
Aimed to connect people, especially those with chronic illnesses, with the local community services and activities that can improve their 
health and wellbeing. Social prescribing or community referral relies essentially on the empowerment of the individuals to be independent 
and make the best use of the community available assets. GPs are able to refer their patients through their navigators (link workers) to 
non-medical services that are provided by either voluntary sector or other statutory services provided by councils such as housing 
associations. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Quarterly Senior Lead : CCG 

  

20



 

Commentary- Area: Transport 

Green routes and cycle path completion 
None of Greenways is completed as yet, detailed design is in process on the first one (Arborfield Garrison to FBC via California CP) this 
year with a view to implementing the scheme in the next financial year. 
 

Reporting Frequency: Annually Senior Lead : Director HWB 

 

21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

TITLE Better Care Fund Evaluation  
  
FOR CONSIDERATION BY Health and Wellbeing Board on 8 December 2016 
  
WARD None Specific 
  
DIRECTOR Stuart Rowbotham, Director of Health and Wellbeing 
 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
Joined up, coherent health and social care service for vulnerable adults leading to 
improved outcomes and user satisfaction. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
To note the evaluation of the Better Care Fund projects’ performance.  
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) primarily aims to improve patient user experience and 
outcomes by facilitating joint working between health agencies and social care.  
Performance is measured using nationally reported and accepted health and social care 
indicators, including non-elective admissions, delayed transfers of care, reductions in 
residential and nursing home placements and numbers re-abled.  
 
Each BCF funded scheme has its own performance target relating to the expected BCF 
performance improvement.  The evaluation matrix (Appendix 1) was completed by the 
Wokingham Integration Strategic Partnership at its meeting on 19 October 2016.  The 
evaluation will inform the 2017-19 BCF allocations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23

Agenda Item 48.



 

Background 
 
The Better Care Fund is a nationally prescribed ring-fenced fund derived as a top slice 
of the Clinical Commissioning Groups Budget along with some other smaller elements 
of grant funding e.g. Disabled Facilities Grant, Care Act specific funding and held as a 
pooled budget between the CCG and the Local Authority.  The deployment of the fund 
must meet national conditions: - 
 

i. That a BCF Plan, covering a minimum of the pooled Fund specified in the 
Spending Review, should be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
itself, and by the constituent Councils and CCGs;  

ii. A demonstration of how the area will meet the national condition to maintain 
provision of social care services in 2016-17;  

iii. Confirmation of agreement on how plans will support progress on meeting the 
2020 standards for seven-day services, to prevent unnecessary non-elective 
admissions and support timely discharge;  

iv. Better data sharing between health and social care, based on the NHS 
number;  

v. A joint approach to assessments and care planning and ensure that, where 
funding is used for integrated packages of care, there will be an accountable 
professional;  

vi. Agreement on the consequential impact of the changes on the providers that 
are predicted to be substantially affected by the plans;  

vii. That a proportion of the area’s allocation is invested in NHS commissioned 
out-of-hospital services, or retained pending release as part of a local risk 
sharing agreement; and  

viii. Agreement on a local action plan to reduce delayed transfers of care.  
 
Analysis of Issues 
 

 The acute sector (primarily the Royal Berkshire NHS Trust) is under immense 
pressure both in terms of admissions and delayed discharges. 

 There is consequently an imperative that BCF deployment evidences its 
effectiveness in reducing admissions and avoiding delayed transfers of care. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result 
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent 
reductions to public sector funding.  It is estimated that Wokingham Borough 
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the 
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context. 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

 

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

N/A – ring-fenced 
budget 

 

 

24



 

 

Cross-Council Implications  

Interdependency with 21st Council; Adult Social Care 

 

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2 

N/A 

 

List of Background Papers 

N/A 

 

Contact  Stuart Rowbotham, Director of 
Health and Wellbeing  

Service  Health and Wellbeing 

Telephone No  0118 974 6762 Email  
stuart.rowbotham@wokingham.gov.uk  

Date  30.11.16 Version No.  1 

 

25

mailto:stuart.rowbotham@wokingham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Evaluating Performance of BCF Schemes - WISP 21.09.16

Planne

d

Delivering 

Outcomes

Total 

score

01 HUB 8 7 7.5 8 10 7 9 8 9 58.5 84

02 WISH 9 8 8.5 8 10 7 9 10 8 60.5 86

03 SUSD 5 8 6.5 7 6 8 6 7 7 47.5 68

04 Dom Care 

Plus 3 3 3 5 3 7 2 3 5 28 40

06 Care 

Homes 8 3 5.5 5 8 9 5 8 9 49.5 71

08 CHAS         

a) Community 

Navigator 6 8 7 9 9 9 3 7 9 53 76

b) Other              N/A 0 0 8 9 N/A 4 8 8 37 74

Represents 

value for money 

in the long term

Builds long term 

capacity for 

integration 

locally; enables 

new models of 

health and social 

care

Evidently 

supports people 

effectively, 

improving 

patient/service 

user satisfaction

Has buy-in from 

all stakeholders 

and workforce: 

Frontline staff 

and political, 

clinical, 

managerial 

leaders

Reflects a truly 

whole system 

approach

Supports shift 

towards 

prevention / 

early help and 

community 

support/self help

Total

%

Is working as planned and 

delivering on outcomes

On a scale of 1 – 10 where 1 is “not at all” and 10 is “to a great extent”, indicate the extent to 
which each scheme: 
On a scale of 1 – 10 where 1 is “not at all” and 10 is “to a great extent”, indicate the extent to 
which each scheme: 

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Berkshire Transforming Care Partnership 

November 2016  

Update to Wokingham  

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

 
Author: Sarah Rowland sarah.rowland5@nhs.net 07703767255 

 

 

 

 

29

A
genda Item

 49.

mailto:sarah.rowland5@nhs.net
http://www.bracknellandascotccg.nhs.uk/


2 

Introduction 

The Berkshire Transforming Care Partnership Board hold a shared vision and commitment 

to support the implementation of the national service model to ensure that children, young 

people and adults with learning disabilities, behaviour that challenges and those with mental 

health and autism receive services to lead meaningful lives through tailored care plans and 

subsequent bespoke services to meet individual needs.  

 

Berkshire Transforming Care Plan has 4 big aims:  

1. Making sure less people are in hospitals by having better services in the community. 

2. Making sure people do not stay in hospitals longer than they need to 

3. Making sure people get good quality care and the right support in hospital and in the 

community  

4. To avoid admissions to and support discharge from hospital, people will receive and be 

involved in a Care and Treatment Review (CTR) 

 

Dedicated web page with links to the TCP plan and Easy Read version - 

http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership  

30

http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership
http://www.wokinghamccg.nhs.uk/berkshire-transforming-care-partnership


3 

Programme 

Governance 

Structure 

 Association 

of Directors 

of Adult 

Social Care 

NHS England  
Local 

Government 

Association  

NHSE (South) 

Regional 

Transformation 

Board 

Representative  

Partner Boards e.g.  

Wokingham  

Business Committee 

Berkshire Transforming 

Care Partnership 

Programme Board 

LD and Autism 

Partnership Boards 

Health and Wellbeing 

Boards  

Berkshire TCP Joint 

Operational Group 

(Berks East and 

Berks West)   

Berkshire TCP Work 

Streams and Project 

Groups  

Berkshire TCP   

Star Chamber 

 

Co-Production 

‘People’s Voice 

Service' 

31



4 

Work Streams (Themes) 

1. Demand and Capacity 

2. Market Shaping – Housing and Care 

Providers 

3. Inpatients  

4. Intensive Support Team 

5. Communications and engagement 

6. Children and Young People  

7. Workforce Development and Culture 

8. Co-Production 

9. Joint Commissioning and Integration 

10. Risk Management 

11. Programme management 

12. High Impact Actions 

 

Work streams and Project Groups 

Project Groups: 

1. Finance and Activity 

2. Housing and Accommodation 

3. Autism 

4. Intensive Intervention Service 

5. Occupation and Employment 

6. Community workforce 

7. People’s Voice Service (Service Users) 

8. TCP Star Chamber 

9. Berks East Capital ‘Home’ Project 

 

 

32



5 

Matters that would be brought to Wokingham Boroughs 

 committee’s and forums during the programme 
EXAMPLES 
• Update from the TCP Programme Board - note progress on specific work stream and project group 

deliverables 

 

• Digest the  content of TCP Briefings and take forward highlighted national guidelines/regulations that 

impact on local authority and clinical commissioning group strategies  

 

• Review and amend the Information Governance Framework drafted by the TCP Joint Operational Group to 

support the development of a Berkshire High Risk Register. The Register will identify those at risk/require 

intensive support to remain in their own home, near their families and avoid admission to an assessment 

and treatment unit 

 

• Following review and consideration by the Autism Project Group and members of the Joint Operational 

Group, endorse a TCP Berkshire wide proposal to standardise the age criteria for commissioning Autism 

services for Children and Young People with LD up to the age of 25 years (some localities only commission 

to 18 years old) 

 

• Review and endorse a Memorandum of Understanding that enables a Berkshire wide Housing Register to 

be created by the  Housing and Accommodation Project Group, to inform a strategic approach to managing 

the housing market for people with long term LD needs 

 

• Decide to be a partner organisation that leads by example by  integrating Supported Employment models 

for people with LD within the borough council, following work done, and tested by the Employment and 

Occupation Project Group 

 

• Review and agree to adopt a Berkshire wide TCP Provider Workforce Competency and Assessment 

Framework as part of the selection criteria for all future procurement exercises with LD care providers. 

Asking the local Learning Disability Partnership Board to use the framework  and work with service users 

and their families to conduct an assurance exercise with incumbent providers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



6 

What we said we would at the last update: 
 

1. Refresh the Programmes Risk Register 

• Corporate Risk Registers  in Berks East and West CCGs reflect  key programme risks 

• Going forward TCP  Joint Operational Group members  will ensure local authority registers reflect 

risks/issues appropriately  

 

2. Start recruitment drive for  additional Experts by Experience to join project groups 

• Job description, personal specification, advert and voluntary contract have been signed off by the 

TCP Programme Board 

• Recruitment campaign will be published on CCG sand Local Authority websites and in TCP 

Briefings from December 

• Two carers (Parents) have been appointed as volunteers onto 3 TCP programme work streams 

and will support the recruitment process 

 

3. As part of shaping the provider market and housing and accommodation market place 

• Berkshire TCP is part of an NDTi Action Learning Set to identify and learn from national best 

practice 

• The Berkshire TCP has submitted 6 Expressions of Interest for Housing and Technology schemes 

for grants from NHS England and the Department of Health. We will know if the bids have been 

successful in December. 

• Wokingham submitted an expression of interest for a capital build scheme for two clients 

 

34



7 

What we said we would do: 
 

4. Establish the Workforce work stream 

• JOG has reviewed the  Health Education England and Skills for Care Workforce Toolkit 

• The tool is useful  to help inform staff consultation exercises as systems move to implement new 

ways of working. However it requires significant manpower to implement in full 

• JOG has used the toolkit to designed a service users, families and carers tool kit to  help support 

commissioners assess providers workforce cultures and competencies. This will be available on 

the web in December. 

 

5. Establish the Autism Project Group 

• The Project Group objectives have been agreed by the TCP Board 

• Due to capacity issues the Group has not yet been established. It is hope this will happen in 

December. 

 

6. Monitor the safe transition of clients from Little House to appropriate sustainable community 

placements 

• The beds at Little House will be suspended from December 2016. There are currently no 

Wokingham clients at Little House 

• BHFT are putting in place resources to support patients and prevent avoidable admissions.  

• More information on these resources will be communicated in the 4th TCP Briefing due in December 

• The TCP Finance and Activity Group, (member Paul Feven) is looking to review the costing model of 

this service and the funding required for the new Intensive Support Team 

• The Project Manager and CCG Commissioners are working with BHFT to draft the new service 

specification which will be reviewed by the TCP Board and Finance and Activity Group 

• The TCP Board will continue to review demand for beds in the Campion Unit on a regular basis 

 

 

35



8 

Some of the activities planned over the next two months  

 

• Continue with TCP Briefing to all partners and communication teams to keep them up to date  

• Finance and Activity Group to do a stocktake of activity across the system; to access the cost of 

current and new service models  

• Formally engage a care and housing provider for the RBWM Capital ‘Home’ Project and secure 

additional funding from Department of Health (DoH) for property adaptations for the two clients 

identified as suitable for the home 

• Finalise repatriation plans for NHS England specialist commissioned clients and out of area 

placements, and identify clients who may be suitable for Dowry Payments 

• Secure DoH Housing and Technology Grant to establish Berkshire Wide HOLD Schemes for up to 10 

clients from across the county 

• Establish the remit of a Forensic Pathway Project Group  and Primary Care Working Group  

• Align JOG work with local Substance Misuse and Personality Disorder strategies 

• Continue with the recruitment campaign for more Carer and Family Experts by Experience to join the 

programme on Voluntary Appointment Contracts 

• Go to market for Co-Production Service and Communications and Engagement Resources to 

support the programme over next two years 

• Establish the Autism Project Group to develop joint commissioning standards around age  

• Finalise the Housing and Accommodation and, Employment and Occupation Project Groups 

• Adopt an Information Governance Agreement across partners to start to build a Berkshire High Risk 

Register of people at risk of admission to an ATU, including Children and Young People in transition 

 

 

 

 

 

36



 

TITLE Revised Project Initiation Document for 
Wokingham Community Health & Social Care 
(CHASC) – (Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care 
and Prevention) BCF 08 Project 

  
FOR CONSIDERATION BY Health and Wellbeing Board on 8 December 2016  
  
WARD None Specific 
  
DIRECTOR Stuart Rowbotham, Director of Health and Wellbeing, 

WBC and Katie Summer, Director of Operations, 
Wokingham CCG 

 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
Investment through the Better Care Fund (BCF) aims to: 

 Integrate Health and Social Care services to deliver a more responsive, joined up 
service benefitting Wokingham residents   

 Maintain resident’s health and wellbeing 

 Provide a better quality service for users  

 Create greater efficiency across the system 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board agree:  
 
1) To proceed with the project as outlined (subject to BCF funding) 
2) To proceed with Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust (BHFT) managing the 
 services across the system and the appointment of the Head of Community 
 Health and Social Care as soon as is practicable.   BHFT would manage the 
 services on behalf of the partnership, with clear accountability to the local 
 authority for its statutory social care duties. 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
To provide a revised project initiation document (PID) for the Community Health and 
Social Care project, part of Wokingham’s Better Care Fund Programme, which sets out 
a revised programme of delivery in 2016/17 and through to 2020/21. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37

Agenda Item 50.



 

Background 
This project initiation document (PID) builds on the original Neighbourhood Clusters, 
Self-Care and Prevention PIDs which were submitted to WISP in August 2015 and 
March 2016 and then onto the Health and Wellbeing Board. The main aim of the 
Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care and Prevention project was:  
 
‘To strengthen community capacity and improve the health literacy, service quality and 
outcomes of care for people such that fewer people will require hospital admission and 
consequently reduce demand on the current health and social care system.’ 
 
Nationally the NHS England “Five Year Forward View” recognises the financial 
challenges which face the NHS over the coming years and indicates a drive towards 
closer integration and joint commissioning between health and social care services, the 
development of different models of provision including multispecialty community 
providers, primary and acute care systems and the transformation of primary care. The 
plan also describes a stronger role for the voluntary sector (which the project will 
provide core financial support for delivery) with more emphasis on putting patients in 
control of their own care. It also emphasises the need to exploit the use of technology 
and the role of public health in achieving better outcomes for communities.  
 
It sets out how organisations might work together to implement new models of care 
through, for example, “multispecialty community providers (MCPs)”, which may include 
variants aligned to plans for locality development.  Establishing an MCP requires local 
leadership, strong relationships and trust. No system of accountable care will get off the 
ground and be viable without the inclusion and active support of general practice, 
working with local partners. As expert generalists, with their registered lists of patients, 
general practitioners will always be the cornerstone of any system of accountable care 
provision.  The Five Year Forward View also invites organisations to “Get serious about 
prevention”.   
 
The Care Act, 2014 outlines the responsibilities Local Authorities have towards 
residents as commissioners and their statutory duties to safeguard residents and 
ensure their wellbeing. The key within this is to emphasise the importance of ‘people 
maintaining their independence as much as possible and for as long as possible’. Over 
the next few years there will need to be fundamental changes to the way care is 
delivered and paid for. These changes will mean that users of the service and their 
carers are in control of their own care and support as part of the Act.   
 
The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) is the tool used to measure 
performance against this ambition and the four domains link into the overall work 
described in this PID and associated guidance: 
• Enhancing quality of life for people with care and support needs 
• Delaying and reducing the need for care and support 
• Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support 
• Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting 
them from avoidable harm. 
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) programme has added further momentum to our local 
integration programme, and offers a vehicle to lever the transformation of health and 
social care services in the provision of integrated care and support. Integrated 
commissioning and provision through the use of the BCF also offers an opportunity to 
improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable people in our society, placing them at 

38



 

the centre of their care and support, and providing them with ‘wraparound’ fully 
integrated health and social care, resulting in an improved experience and better quality 
of life.  The on-going development of these plans will ensure that there is a system-wide 
shared view of the shape of future integrated services. 
 
Analysis of Issues 
The Community Health and Social Care projects overarching aim is: 
‘to keep the residents of Wokingham fit, well and living as independently as they can be 
in their own homes for as long as possible by working as a single health and social care 
system that supports people, promotes self-care and prevention and ultimately makes 
the most effective use of all resources in the system’ 
 
Community Health and Social Care (CHASC) is about integration. As a patient or a 
clinician, you would not choose to recreate from scratch the historical partitions between 
primary, community, mental health and social care and acute services. The boundaries 
make it harder to provide joined-up care that is preventative, high quality and efficient. 
CHASC aims to dissolve the divides. It involves redesigning care around the health of 
the population, irrespective of existing institutional arrangements. It is about creating a 
new system of care delivery that is backed up by a new financial and business model. 
 
The underlying logic of CHASC is that by focusing on prevention and redesigning care, 
it is possible to improve health and wellbeing, achieve better quality, reduce avoidable 
hospital admissions and elective activity, and unlock more efficient ways of delivering 
care. The model of integrated health and social care will have a much stronger 
emphasis on empowering clients to take more control over their lives through promoting 
their independence. The plan is to bring disparate services together and align these 
services. CHASC will enable the following: 
• Pro-active care 
• People will only need to tell their story once 
• Everyone will have a single care plan 
• People will have an accountable key worker 
• Reduce duplication of effort by providers 
 
The benefits the project plans to deliver are: 
• Reduced Non-Elective (NEL) admissions 
• Reduced Accident and Emergency (A&E) attendances 
• Reduced/delayed cost of social care packages 
• Reduced/delayed care home placements in the long term 
• Improved satisfaction of care 
• Care and support are centred on the person’s needs 
• People have a high quality of life, and enjoy their improved health status 
• People feel empowered, capable of and engage in self-management 
• Care is of high quality and safe 
• People experience pro-active, coordinated care and support 
• Reduction in use of GP appointments for non-medical problems 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result 
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent 
reductions to public sector funding.  It is estimated that Wokingham Borough 
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the 
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context. 

39



 

Benefits 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 

A&E admissions avoidance 0 -14,025 -28,050 -28,050 -28,050 

NEL's avoidance 0 
-

177,742 
-

355,484 
-

355,484 
-

355,484 

Care Home avoidance 0 -119 -10,068 -10,068 -10,068 

Early intervention opportunities 0 -20,421 -73,637 -73,637 -73,637 

Total Benefits 0 
-

212,307 
-

467,239 
-

467,239 
-

467,239 

              

Net cost / (Benefit) 108,552 70,134 
-

367,996 
-

367,996 
-

367,996 

              

Cumulative Net Cost / (Benefit) 108,552 178,686 
-

189,311 
-

557,307 
-

925,303 

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

The proposal requires gross investment of £688,722 up to 20/21 and will deliver gross 
savings of £1,614,026 at the end of year 20/21 ROI of 134%. The project is expected to 
return a net saving in 2018/19 and with savings expected to continue. The funding 
source is the BCF. 

 

Cross-Council Implications  

See page 27 of the PID 

 

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2 

N/A 

 

List of Background Papers 

See page 40 of the PID 

 

Contact  Rhian Warner Service  Better Care Fund Programme 

Telephone No  07989 346744 Email  Rhian.warner@berkshire.nhs.uk 

Date  24th November 2016 Version No.  1 

 

40



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   1 | P a g e  

 

 

BW10 INTEGRATION PROGRAMME 

 

 

Wokingham Community Health & Social Care (CHASC) – (Neighbourhood 
Clusters, Self-Care and Prevention) BCF Project  

 

 

Project Initiation Document 
 

 

DATE & VERSION NO. 

16TH NOVEMBER 2016 VS. 1.5 

BETTER CARE FUND REF:  

BCF 08 

PROJECT/ SCHEME NAME AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION  

This paper sets out the business case for continued Better Care Funding (BCF) funding in 2016/17 for the 
Community Health and Social care project.  

 

The Community Health and Social Care projects overarching aim is: 

‘to keep the residents of Wokingham fit, well and living as independently as they can be in their own homes 
for as long as possible by working as a single health and social care system that supports people, 

promotes self-care and prevention and ultimately makes the most effective use of all resources in the 
system’ 

 

Community Health and Social Care (CHASC) is about integration. As a patient or a clinician, you would not 
choose to recreate from scratch the historical partitions between primary, community, mental health and 
social care and acute services. The boundaries make it harder to provide joined-up care that is 
preventative, high quality and efficient. CHASC aims to dissolve the divides. It involves redesigning care 
around the health of the population, irrespective of existing institutional arrangements. It is about creating a 
new system of care delivery that is backed up by a new financial and business model. 

 

The underlying logic of CHASC is that by focusing on prevention and redesigning care, it is possible to 
improve health and wellbeing, achieve better quality, reduce avoidable hospital admissions and elective 
activity, and unlock more efficient ways of delivering care. The model of integrated health and social care 
will have a much stronger emphasis on empowering clients to take more control over their lives through 
promoting their independence. The plan is to bring disparate services together and align these services. 
CHASC will enable the following: 

 Pro-active care 

 People will only need to tell their story once 

 Everyone will have a single care plan 

 People will have an accountable key worker 

 Reduce duplication of effort by providers 

 

The benefits the project plans to deliver are: 

 Reduced Non-Elective (NEL) admissions 

 Reduced Accident and Emergency (A&E) attendances 

 Reduced/delayed cost of social care packages 41



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   2 | P a g e  

 

 Reduced/delayed care home placements in the long term 

 Improved satisfaction of care 

 Care and support are centred on the person’s needs 

 People have a high quality of life, and enjoy their improved health status 

 People feel empowered, capable of and engage in self-management 

 Care is of high quality and safe 

 People experience pro-active, coordinated care and support 

 Reduction in use of GP appointments for non-medical problems 

 

Community Health and Social Care system  will provide joined up, long-term, health and social care 
support which will deliver: 

1. Risk stratification or predictive modelling  

2. Care co-ordination  

3. Care delivery/Case management   

4. Management of ambulatory care-sensitive conditions  

5. Primary prevention  

6. Self-care  

 

The impacts of the project will be: 

 Better health for the whole population 

 Reduced inequalities in access to health and social care, including improved access to the right service 
at the right time. 

 Reduced variation in outcomes 

 Increased quality of care  and safety for all patients 

 Better value for the taxpayer 

 Supporting people to live well in their own homes for as long as they wish and are able to 

 Improve patients experience of health and social care 

 Contribute to a more sustainable system for the future by reducing demand 

 

The proposal requires gross investment of £688,722 up to 20/21 and will deliver gross savings of 
£1,614,026 at the end of year 20/21 ROI of 134%. The project is expected to return a net saving in 
2018/19 and with savings expected to continue. The funding source is the BCF. 

 

SENIOR RESPONSIBLE PERSON (SRO) PROJECT / SCHEME MANAGER 

Stuart Rowbotham, Director Health and 
Wellbeing Wokingham Borough Council 

Katie Summers, Director of Operations, NHS 
Wokingham CCG 

 

Rhian Warner, Project Manager 

 

 

 

42



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   3 | P a g e  

 

 

Contents 
 

Purpose of Document .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 1 – Project Definition, Description & Purpose ............................................................................................... 5 

Strategic Case – Project Description and Aims ............................................................................................................. 5 

Impacts & Outcomes ................................................................................................................................................... 22 

Performance Metrics .................................................................................................................................................. 23 

Options  ....................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

Assumptions and Constraints ..................................................................................................................................... 25 

Scope & Exclusions ...................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Dependencies .............................................................................................................................................................. 27 

Section 2 - Economic and Affordability Case ............................................................................................................ 28 

Budget / Cost Summary (£000s) ................................................................................................................................. 28 

Planned Savings/Efficiencies ....................................................................................................................................... 29 

Section 3 - Project Approach & Governance ............................................................................................................. 32 

Key Project Milestones (to include initial start date, main delivery points and Go Live date) ................................... 32 

Delivery Chain ............................................................................................................................................................. 33 

Project Organisation and Governance ........................................................................................................................ 33 

Project Controls .......................................................................................................................................................... 33 

Information Governance ............................................................................................................................................. 36 

Risks Management and Contingency Plans ................................................................................................................ 37 

Section 4 – Co-production, Engagement and Communications .............................................................................. 38 

Patient/Service User Engagement and Co-production plan outline ........................................................................... 38 

Equality Impact Assessment ....................................................................................................................................... 38 

Key Stakeholders/ Clinical Engagement and communications plan outline ............................................................... 38 

Section 5 - Document Information .............................................................................................................................. 40 

Section 6 - Appendices  ……………………………………………………………………………………………………....42 

Appendix 1 - Wokingham CCG and Local Authority Population Demographics………………………………………………………….42 
Appendix 2 - RACI Model ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….45 
Appendix 3 - Finance Detail……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….46 
Appendix 4 - Integrated Impact Assessment Tool - Stage 1 Proforma…………………………………………………………………….…48 
 

 

43



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   4 | P a g e  

 

 

Purpose of Document 

 

The purpose of this document is to define the project, to form the basis for its ongoing management and 
the assessment of overall success.  It also provides a statement of how and when the project's 
objectives are to be achieved, by showing the major products, activities and resources required on the 
project. 

 

Specifically the paper aims: 

• To explain the rationale behind the Community Health and Social Care Project  

• To demonstrate what the programme will deliver in 2016/17 and in the medium term 

• To show how the programme might achieve its objectives 

 

Though the PID describes the full breadth of this programme the focus for the rest of 2016/17 will be 
delivery of the phase 1 objectives. 

 

Recommendations 

That Wokingham Integrated Strategic Partnership (WISP) and the Health and Well-being Board agree:  

 To proceed with the project as outlined (subject to BCF funding) 

 To proceed with BHFT managing the services across the system and the appointment of the Head 
of Community Health and Social Care as soon as is practicable.   BHFT would manage the services 
on behalf of the partnership, with clear accountability to the local authority for its statutory social 
care duties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
44



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   5 | P a g e  

 

Section 1 – Project Definition, Description & Purpose 

Strategic Case – Project Description and Aims 

1.1 Background 

This business case builds on the original Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care and Prevention business 
cases which were submitted to WISP in August 2015 and March 2016. The main aim of the Neighbourhood 
Clusters, Self-Care and Prevention project was:  

To strengthen community capacity and improve the health literacy, service quality and outcomes of care for 
people such that fewer people will require hospital admission and consequently reduce demand on the 
current health and social care system. 

 

Nationally the NHS England “Five Year Forward View” recognises the financial challenges which face the 
NHS over the coming years and indicates a drive towards closer integration and joint commissioning 
between health and social care services, the development of different models of provision including 
multispecialty community providers, primary and acute care systems and the transformation of primary 
care. The plan also describes a stronger role for the voluntary sector (which the project will provide core 
financial support for delivery) with more emphasis on putting patients in control of their own care. It also 
emphasises the need to exploit the use of technology and the role of public health in achieving better 
outcomes for communities.  

 

It sets out how organisations might work together to implement new models of care through, for example, 
“multispecialty community providers (MCPs)”, which may include variants aligned to plans for locality 
development.  Establishing an MCP requires local leadership, strong relationships and trust. No system of 
accountable care will get off the ground and be viable without the inclusion and active support of general 
practice, working with local partners. As expert generalists, with their registered lists of patients, general 
practitioners will always be the cornerstone of any system of accountable care provision.  The Five Year 
Forward View also invites organisations to “Get serious about prevention”.   

 

The Care Act, 2014 outlines the responsibilities Local Authorities have towards residents as commissioners 
and their statutory duties to safeguard residents and ensure their wellbeing. The key within this is to 
emphasise the importance of ‘people maintaining their independence as much as possible and for as long 
as possible’. Over the next few years there will need to be fundamental changes to the way care is 
delivered and paid for. These changes will mean that users of the service and their carers are in control of 
their own care and support as part of the Act.   

 

The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) is the tool used to measure performance against 
this ambition and the four domains link into the overall work described in this PID and associated guidance: 

 Enhancing quality of life for people with care and support needs 

 Delaying and reducing the need for care and support 

 Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support 

 Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable 
harm. 

 

The Better Care Fund (BCF) programme has added further momentum to our local integration programme, 
and offers a vehicle to lever the transformation of health and social care services in the provision of 
integrated care and support. Integrated commissioning and provision through the use of the BCF also 
offers an opportunity to improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable people in our society, placing 
them at the centre of their care and support, and providing them with ‘wraparound’ fully integrated health 
and social care, resulting in an improved experience and better quality of life.  The on-going development of 
these plans will ensure that there is a system-wide shared view of the shape of future integrated services 

 

1.1.1 What are the health and social care problems/issues that need to be addressed? 

In Wokingham the following have been identified as drivers that need to be urgently addressed: 

 The continuing financial pressures, both Health and Social care budgets need to be made financially 
viable for now and the future, eliminating inefficient duplication of work and hand offs between parties. 

 Primary care is under pressure and is at risk of falling over due to workforce issues, the development of 45



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   6 | P a g e  

 

Wokingham as an SDL (strategic development location) and single handed practices no longer being 
viable models of delivery.   

 The 2015 Autumn Position Statement and Comprehensive Spending Review mandated Upper Tier 
Local Authorities and the NHS to deliver health and social care integration plans by April 2017 and full 
implementation by April 2020. Integration planning is consequently a condition of the 2016/17 Better 
Care Fund. 

 Increasing demands on services - Complex patients in Wokingham Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) account for 2% of the user population and they form 14.9% of Wokingham CCGs spend on 
acute hospital care (out-patient appointments, A&E attendances and inpatient admissions), nationally 
this patient cohort spend is 15%.  Whilst this analysis only focuses on secondary care due to availability 
of data, it is expected that these patients are fairly representative of the type of complex patients that 
will require the most treatment across the health and social care system. 

 In 2013/141 (Full data on the population and demographics for Wokingham Borough and Wokingham 
CCG can be found in Appendix 1 of this paper): 

o 30 patients had a total of 308 A&E attendances between them 

o 309 patients had a total of 2,649 outpatient appointments in an acute hospital setting 

o Wokingham’s average complex patient has 5 inpatient admissions per year across 3 different 
conditions.   

o Wokingham’s CCG spends most on Circulation, Cancer and Musculo-skeletal 

o 60% of these complex patients are aged 65 or over 

o 34% of these complex patients are aged 75 or over 

o 10% of these complex patients are aged 85 or over 

 Feedback from service users – they feel that health and social care staff work in silos and that care is 
not joined up, the voluntary sector will become overwhelmed, services are not always accessible in an 
easy or timely manner. 

 Not intervening early enough in a patient’s disease journey, which creates bigger demands and greater 
need 

 The population is getting older which will lead to greater care demands 

 The prevalence of long term conditions is increasing as the population get older 

 Traditional care services will not meet the demand for, and expectations of, care across the Borough’s 
population possibly contributing to inequalities of health and wellbeing in Wokingham. 

 

These drivers have led to: 

 Variability in health outcomes  

 Inequitable resource allocation  

 Increasing inequalities 

 Increased costs 

 

It is recognised that as a system we need to do things differently in order to manage and reduce the impact 
of these drivers to deliver the best possible care in the most effective way.  As the population ages and long 
term conditions (LTCs) increase in prevalence, providers and commissioners are being asked to do more 
with less. In this context, the current approach to care is unsustainable as it is both unaffordable and does 
not provide people with the person-centred, pro-active, integrated and quality of care they tell us they need. 

 

The current situation is not financially viable and we need to shine an honest light on what we are doing.  
The BCF, NHS England’s Right Care Programme and The Frail Elderly Pathway support the vision set out 
in the Five Year Forward View with its focus on the transformation of health and social care services to 
drive improvements in quality and efficiency, to be able to continue to care for our local population in the 
manner it expects. 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
1
 Commissioning for Value: Where to Look, January 2016, NHS Wokingham CCG, Gateway Ref:04599 46



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   7 | P a g e  

 

1.1.2 Pyramid of Need - The projects target cohort 

The target groups that Community Health and Social Care working will focus on, at least initially, are:  

 Case Management- Very high intensity services users (and their carers) with complex co-morbidities, 
the top 2% of users.  They require multi-disciplinary teams focussing interventions to avoid, anticipate 
and manage crisis to avoid admission.  

 Disease Management – High risk service users often with complex needs (top 3-10% of service users). 
They require responsive teams focused on managing disease and preventing further ill-health 

 Supported Self-Care – Moderate risk service users (70-80% of LTC population).  They require 
supported self-care to maximise independence involving third sector and voluntary organisations  

 Prevention & Promotion of Wellbeing – Low risk service users, their carers and the general population.  
This group need to maintain health and well-being through healthy lifestyles within a cohesive 
community and might benefit from local information and support to self-care and enhance their health & 
wellbeing.  This group would be predominantly supported by the Public Health services. 

 

 

 
 

Figure 1 – Pyramid of Need 

 

Clearly, a significant proportion of the care provided will be common to all tiers. However, health and social 
care needs of the tiers also differ in crucial ways, meaning each tier requires a set of targeted interventions 
to support people to keep them well. It is important to note that these tiers are fluid. People can and will 
move between the different levels of care as they experience periods of instability and recover from them.  
The system response designed will need to be proportionate to the individual’s requirements i.e. resources 
in the right place at the right time and it will not be a one size fits all solution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   8 | P a g e  

 

1.2 Strategic Fit 

This proposal is set in the wider context of increasing health and social care demand, primarily due to 
demography, and the need for the local authority and Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (BHFT) 
to achieve challenging savings targets while maintaining/improving the quality/safety of care. 

 

 
 

Figure 2  - Sam’s Story – BCF 08 

 

The objective of this BCF scheme is to deliver better outcomes for Wokingham clients through an 
integrated pathway between Health and Social Care. This will support the need to deliver services in a 
much more cost effective way and deliver savings.  

 

General practice is experiencing unprecedented workload and workforce challenges. When general 
practice fails, the NHS fails2. A big reason to develop CHASC is to provide practical help to sustain general 
practice right now. CHASC will support practices to work at scale and also to benefit from working with 
larger community based teams. CHASC opens up new options for partners, clinicians and managers. 

Over time it should also help with managing demand for general practice, by building community networks, 
connecting with the voluntary sector, and supporting patient activation and self-care. 

  

This will be achieved through ensuring timely and effective responses to meeting needs of clients based in 
the community. This scheme sits within the overall BCF programme and will support a renewed focus on 
decreasing dependency and promoting independence. The need for long term care will be reduced.  Doing 
things once with the right resources identified from the outset, responding quickly and having well trained 
staff available to meet the needs. 

 

The project is underpinned by health and social care professionals working alongside one another, and with 
family and carers as expert partners in care, to: 

 Provide the right care, by the right people, at the right time and in the right place with more people 
supported within their community, and the development of 7-day working across Health and Social Care 

 Keep the individual at the centre of a co-ordinated health and care system with a single point of contact 
via a ‘hub’ 

 Develop and earn trust, from patients/service users and across organisational boundaries 

 Keep improving health and care systems with the people who use them increasingly involved in the 
design, delivery and evaluation of services 

 Protect community (including family) connections for those with care and support needs, in recognition 
of the positive impacts these have on emotional and physical wellbeing 

 Make the experience of care a more positive one, in which the individual retains as much choice and 

                                                           
2
 The multispecialty community provider (MCP) emerging care model and contract framework, July 2016, Gateway ref: 05637 48



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   9 | P a g e  

 

control as possible. 

 

It provides an opportunity for Health and Social Care, working together to meet the requirements within: 

 Care Act, 2014 

 The NHS England Five Year Forward View, October 2014. 

 The Berkshire West 10 Frail Elderly Programme (FEP) recommendations and implementation plan 

 

Alignment to CCG objectives 

 To achieve good health outcomes across the patch - benchmarked within the top quartile in UK 

 To commission appropriate healthcare within available resources ensuring value for money 

 To commission safe, high-quality services which meet the health needs of the Wokingham population 
through optimum use of the latest technology, with all health and social care professionals working 
together across the health economy, to ensure that Wokingham residents get the care they need in the 
most appropriate place 

 To optimise patient and public engagement/ involvement to ensure a broad, representative patient/ 
public voice is heard. 

 

Fit with CCG 16-17 Operational Priorities 

 Piloting new technology – enabling care 

 Innovative approaches to transform clinical pathways building on the Hospital without walls 

 Highly responsive urgent and crisis care services outside of hospital 

 Successful delivery of QIPP 

 

Alignment with 16-17 BCF Priorities 

 People’s experiences of care 

 Care outcomes in terms of changes to people's health and wellbeing 

 Better use of resources. 

 

1.3 Community Health and Social Care Overview  

 
Figure 3 – The proposed system Model 49



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   10 | P a g e  

 

The model shows how the new services created by the BCF programme all fit together and are able to 
deliver the right care at the right time for all of Wokingham’s residents. 

 

For CHASC a simple pattern of services needs to be developed, based around primary care and natural 
geographies and with a multidisciplinary team. These teams need to work in new ways with specialist 
services – both community and hospital based, to offer patients a much more complete and less 
fragmented service. 

 

As the new model is developed there is a need to include both mental health and social care, including the 
management of the health and social care budget for the care of their patients.  Community services also 
need to reach out into communities more effectively. The opportunity to harness the power of the wider 
community to support people in their own homes, combat social isolation and improve prevention is not 
being fully exploited. 

 

We therefore need to design and deliver a service that: 

 provides pro-active rather than reactive management, ‘doing it better earlier on’ 

 improves the value and utilisation of resources by streamlining process and procedures and through 
economies of scale 

 reduces/removes barriers by linking services and teams to provide consistency which builds trust 

 drives accountability from staff and users 

 addresses needs in a timely manner 

 

This case proposes locality-based teams that are grouped around primary care and natural geographies, 
offering 24/7 services as standard, and complemented by highly flexible and responsive community and 
social care services3.  The localities proposed are below. 

 

 
Figure 4 – Proposed Localities 

(Practices and changes in population from now to 2022 – taking into account new housing developments) 

 

The idea of localities has emerged within the context of:  

 The MCP vanguard results to date.  

o The building blocks of an MCP are the ‘care hubs’ of integrated teams. Each typically serves a 

                                                           
3
 Nigel Edwards, Community Services – How they can transform care.  The Kings Fund February 2014 50



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   11 | P a g e  

 

community of around 30-50,000 people. These hubs are the practical, operational level of any 
model of accountable care provision. The wider the scope of services included in the MCP, the 
more hubs you may need to connect together to create sufficient scale. 

o An MCP model is a place-based model of care. It serves the whole population, not just an 
important subset (such as people over the age of 65). 

 Under-developed relationships between health and social care, housing and the voluntary sector, a 
particular issue given that some people receive care from all or many of these services 

 Unwarranted variations in practice 

 Local people telling us that they want better access to services and more joined up services  

 Financial and demand pressures on the health and social care system, and the need to address these 
through new ways of working 

 

The Community Health and Social Care project has 2 elements: 

1. Integration of long term health and social care - Localities are being developed to focus service planning 
and delivery around local communities with the aim of more effectively coordinating care and support for 
people with complex needs and emphasising self-care and early, targeted prevention. Within each Locality, 
Primary Care, Community and Social Care teams will work together to provide integrated out-of-hospital 
services in the right place at the right time to improve outcomes and will work closely with appropriate local 
voluntary and community organisations to support people to self-care and prevent further ill health. 

 

The initial phase of this will integrate Wokingham Borough Council’s (WBC) long-term social work 
functions, currently provided by Optalis brokerage and support, with BHFT’s community nurse teams. Other 
organisations’ services that may be better delivered on a locality basis may also join the Locality at a later 
date.  

 

2. Promoting Self-Care and Prevention of health and social care issues and conditions, this is being 
undertaken in partnership with the voluntary sector through Involve who have developed a Volunteer 
Community Navigator scheme to improve access to local voluntary and community resources by providing 
targeted, up to date information to service users and their families, and support local people to self-care 
and maximise their wellbeing. 

 

In February 2015 Jeremy Hunt reported that a fifth of GPs time is spent dealing with patients' social 
problems, such as debt, isolation, housing, and employment.  We do not have data specific for Wokingham 
and as Wokingham is not described as socio-economically deprived the percentage may be lower. The 
Low Commission inquiry into social welfare advice provision chaired by Lord Colin Low, reported services 
located in primary care settings could cut time spent by GPs on benefits issues by 15% and reduce repeat 
appointments and prescriptions. The report called on NHS commissioners to use welfare advice services to 
address the social determinants of ill health, improving health outcomes, addressing health inequalities and 
reducing demand on the NHS. 

 

Social prescribing has been shown to: 

 Reduce the use of GP appointments for social problems 

 Reduce the level of care required for care packages 

 Improve  general health 

 Improve  well-being 

 Reduce feelings of isolation 

 Help people meet others who have the same diagnosis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 51



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   12 | P a g e  

 

These 2 elements form one of the three key parts of Wokingham’s Integration plan set out below, which 
shows  how the long-term integrated teams fit with other integrated services such as the Hub and the short-
term (WISH) team.  This is the final piece of the jigsaw for Wokingham’s integrated system. 

 

 

 
 

Figure 5 – Sam’s story – Wokingham’s BCF Programme overview 

 

1.4 CHASC Aims and Impacts 

The projects overarching aim is: 

‘to keep the residents of Wokingham fit, well and living as independently as they can be in their own homes 
for as long as possible by working as a single health and social care system that supports people, 

promotes self-care and prevention and ultimately makes the most effective use of all resources in the 
system’ 

 

The objectives of the project are: 

 Reducing the complexity of services – removing organisational boundaries, single care plan, 
accountable key workers 

 Wrapping services around primary care – delivered with and alongside GPs 

 Aligning teams/services and geographical localities to provide most effective coverage that meets the 
population needs throughout the year 

 Building multidisciplinary teams for people with complex needs, including social care, mental health and 
other services 

 Supporting these teams with specialist medical input – particularly for older people and those with long-
term conditions 

 Building an infrastructure to support the model based on these components including much better ways 
to measure and pay for services, use of technology, using data to inform care co-ordination and delivery 

 Developing the capability to harness the power of the wider community e.g. voluntary sector, fire 
service 

52



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   13 | P a g e  

 

 Ensuring that the response is proportionate to the individuals needs 

 

Community Health and Social Care system will be responsible for delivering integrated care through smart 
working, as opposed to isolated care.  This will provide person centred care delivered by an appropriate 
professional from the integrated team.  It will be collective, joined up, long-term, health and social care 
support and will deliver: 

 Primary prevention - Reducing the demand for health and care services, by enabling people to enjoy a 
healthy and active life within their communities, is a key priority for the NHS and social care system. 
The King’s Fund has recently published a resource for local authorities that outline the key priorities for 
prevention and improving the public’s health (Buck and Gregory 2013). The paper highlights partnership 
working and systematic use of health impact assessments as key and highlights key areas that can 
improve public health and reduce inequalities. 

 Self-care - People with long-term conditions account for 70 per cent of all inpatient bed days (Naylor et 
al 2013).  Self-management programmes, which aim to support patients to manage their own condition, 
have been shown to reduce unplanned hospital admissions for some conditions such as chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and asthma (Purdy 2010). 

 Managing ambulatory care-sensitive conditions - Conditions where the need for hospital admissions 
can be reduced through active management (known as ambulatory care-sensitive (ACS) conditions) 
accounted for 15.9 per cent of all emergency hospital admissions in England in 2009/10, with an 
estimated cost of £1.42 billion (Tian et al 2012).  The annual Care Quality Commission (CQC) ‘state of 
care’ report (2013) found that ‘older people are increasingly arriving in A&E with avoidable conditions’ 
such as diabetes or respiratory diseases. The report found that some areas were more able to avoid 
these admissions and it highlights interaction between primary health care, secondary health care and 
social care as key (CQC 2013). An emergency admission for an ACSC is often a sign of the poor 
overall quality of primary and community care. Conditions (such as asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, 
hypertensive disease, dementia and heart failure) where optimum management can be achieved in the 
community. 

 Risk stratification or predictive modelling - Statistical models can be used to identify or predict 
individuals who are at high risk of future hospital admissions in order to target care to prevent 
emergency admissions. In an evaluation of predictive modelling options, Billings et al (2013) suggest: 

o choosing which predictive model should be based on a number of factors, including the intervention 
design and the data that it will analyse 

o including GP data in predictive modelling is particularly important, and including all patients in an 
area rather than just those with prior hospital use was found to improve case-finding.  

We will need to consider what data is available to us and it will be a key enabler of the project.  One 
example of a service model that uses risk stratification is ‘virtual wards’, which provide multidisciplinary 
case management to people in their own homes identified as high risk, as would be available in a 
hospital ward, in order to prevent emergency admissions. 

 Care co-ordination - Care co-ordination is a person-centred, pro-active approach to bringing health and 
social care services together around the needs of service users. It involves assessment of an 
individual’s needs, development of a comprehensive care plan and a designated care co-ordinator to 
manage and monitor services around the individual, recognised in recent changes to the GP contract.  
Using the GPs anticipatory care plan so that people have one single health and social care plan. 

 Care Delivery/ Case management - Co-ordinated and integrated services for people with long-term 
conditions have potential to deliver better and more cost-effective care if they are well designed, involve 
professionally trained case managers and care teams, and are embedded in a wider system that 
supports co-ordinated care (Ross et al 2011). Evidence suggests that a significant proportion of 
admissions could be avoided if alternative forms of care were available (Health Foundation 2013). 

 

The impacts of the project will be: 

 better health for the whole population 

 reduced inequalities in access to health and social care, including improved access to the right service 
at the right time 

 reduced variation in outcomes 

 increased quality of care and safety for all patients 

 better value for the taxpayer 

53



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   14 | P a g e  

 

 supporting people to live well in their own homes for as long as they wish and are able to 

 improve patients experience of health and social care 

 contribute to a more sustainable system for the future by reducing demand 

 

1.5 CHASC - How are we going to do it? 

CHASC cannot simply be willed into being through a transactional contracting process. Merely rewiring 
institutional forms, contracts and financial flows changes nothing. By far the most critical task in developing 
CHASC is to get going on care redesign, locality by locality. However, to be sustainable and fulfil its 
potential, CHASC will ultimately need to be commissioned rather than continue to rely on a shared vision 
and goodwill. In this way money flows and contracts and organisational structures all actively help rather 
than hinder staff to do the right thing. CHASC may start off as a loose coalition, but sooner or later it has to 
be established on a sound legal footing under contract.   

 

The proposed changes in service delivery are ambitious and reflect the 5 year vision for health & social 
care for people in Wokingham.  Therefore we need to phase and prioritise the implementation of the model 
of care, recognising that immediate changes do need to be made.  The project will need to be phased into 
4 phases to ensure successful delivery. 

 

1. Phase 1  - Volunteer Community Navigators – implementation started March 2016 for completion 
January 2017 

2. Phase 2a  – Developing CHASC Model of Care (delivery in year 16/17) and Phase 2b - Implementing 
CHASC Model of Care (delivery Q1 & Q2 of 17/18) 

3. Phase 3a – Delivery around Primary Care (GP alignment in localities and formal agreement on working 
arrangement – between practices and CHASC – Now to May 2017)  and Phase 3b Testing Phase with a 
single locality (September 2017 to December 2017) 

4. Phase 4 – Development of future plans with wider partners, to work up as a model in 17/18 

 

This Business Case lays the foundations for whole systems integration. Achieving the initial savings 
through the reduction in NELs is critical to enabling further investment in pro-active and preventative 
services, however through better co-ordination of existing services we can ensure that the benefits can 
start to be realised. 

 

Key objective deliverables: 

 One service offer across Wokingham Borough to be delivered with and alongside General Practice 

 Aligning teams/services and geographical localities to provide most effective coverage that meets the 
population needs 

 Reviewing and agreeing the role and responsibility of all staff  groups e.g. community navigators, care 
coordinators, social workers, GPs and community matrons 

 Reviewing and updating all processes to provide efficiency and consistency 

 Investigating and implementing technology where needed 

 Ensuring mechanisms are in place to use data produced regularly about NELs, A&E admissions, SCAS 
activity and GP attendances to inform care co-ordination and care delivery is aimed at the right people. 
The new model is reliant on using high quality business intelligence systems, with data that is as real 
time as possible. Without these, CHASC is ‘flying blind’. Core aspects of ‘commissioning support’ such 
as business intelligence will increasingly become ‘population health management support’, and CHASC 
will need to use these services as a key customer 

 Developing partnership working with the 3rd sector 

 Delivering services around Primary Care  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 54



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   15 | P a g e  

 

1.5.1 Proposed Care Delivery Model – LONG TERM CARE 

Figure 6 – Proposed Care Delivery Model 

 

 

 
 

The model will require further refinement during the planning phase.  The model builds on the view that at 
risk people benefit most from high quality, integrated multi-disciplinary care and support which is provided 
as close to their home environment as possible. To deliver a genuine person-centred approach to care, it is 
necessary for partners in Wokingham to think across organisational boundaries to create joined-up services 
operating under a ‘one team’ ethos. Working with lay partners, clinicians, and health and social care 
practitioners, the new, long term model of care has been designed based on the pyramid of need defined 
(Figure 1 page 7).  

 

The transformation of care involves major shifts: 

 In the boundary between formal and informal care 

 In the use of technology - not only to provide fully interoperable electronic records and real time data, 
but also to redesign the process of care delivery, for example through phone and Skype consultations, 
diagnostics, the use of apps and early adoption of innovative drugs and devices. 

 In the workforce - it empowers and engages staff to work in different ways by creating new multi-
disciplinary teams; by redesigning jobs so that they are more rewarding, sustainable and efficient; and 
by implementing newer professional roles. 

The opportunity for CHASC is across all three. An effective model engages and activates patients, their 
carers, families and communities in helping to take control of their own care – rather than assuming that the 

55



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   16 | P a g e  

 

main source of value is clinicians doing things to people.  

 

The model shows that everyone will receive a level of pro-active care. Care will then ‘ramp up’ as level of 
need increases. People will have easy access to health, care, social care, mental health and well-being 
services. Crucially both physical and mental health needs have equal status and are accounted for under 
‘health’ in the diagram. 

 Self-Management - The model focusses on providing high quality through pro-active and preventative 
action to stop at risk people becoming unwell in the first place.   

 General Practice - will remain fundamental to the delivery of care for all tiers, but there will be a greater 
role for GPs across all settings of care. 

 Social Prescribing -It recommends that well-being prescription should be seen as on par with medical 
prescription. As such, referral to local voluntary and faith organisations that provide well-being activities 
will be increased.  

 Care Co-ordination - The model of care will be underpinned by care co-ordination that will ensure 
agencies are able to work more effectively together, as opposed to delivering specific elements of care 
independently. 
o A person’s GP will retain overall clinical accountability for that person throughout their care pathway 

and for those individuals on the community hub caseload, their assigned Locality MDT Co-ordinator 
will retain overall accountability for the co-ordination of their care throughout their journey including 
if they require CHASC services. Even though an attitude of co-ordination will be expressed by all 
professionals, the locality MDT Co-ordinator explicitly functions as the ‘glue’ between the different 
services. 

o This will involve ensuring that the persons care plan is up-to-date and acted upon, working with 
people and other professionals to co-ordinate care more effectively, as opposed to delivering 
specific elements of care independently and ensuring that everyone involved in the person’s care is 
kept up to date as to where they are on their care journey. 

o The Locality MDT Co-ordinators will organise support to ensure that people receive co-ordinated 
multi-disciplinary care and will maintain regular contact with people and those providing their care. 
They will ensure that any change in condition is identified early and escalated to the appropriate 
professional in a timely manner. The Locality MDT Co-ordinator is the primary point of contact for 
the person receiving the service. 

 

It will also begin to bring about the whole-system change we know the area needs by: 

 Creating a single, integrated, multi-disciplinary team operating under the ‘Community Health and Social 
Care’ banner 

 Improving the way in which professionals share information within and between organisations, such that 
a person only needs to tell their story once and has confidence that everyone involved in their care will 
have access to the medical history 

 Placing and increased emphasis on pro-active care and moving as much care as possible out of the 
hospital and into homes and communities 

 Developing step up beds at Wokingham Community Hospital to manage users within their community 
and prevent acute NEL admissions 

 Delivering improvements in access to general practice as described in the General Practice Forward 
View.  E.g. delivering enhanced urgent care services, through clinical hubs with patients immediately 
accessing GPs, nurse prescribers, pharmacists and dentists through 111 or a single point of access. 

 Improve the care co-ordination and delivery of care to not only the top 2% but also the top 10% of users 

of health and social care 

Under the new model of care people will receive: 

 Care that is centred around the person’s needs, wishes and aspirations e.g. a single point of access to 
services 

 Care that emphasises self-management and the pro-active involvement of individuals in their own care 

 Timely health and social care assessments and preventative intervention 

 Care planning & co-ordination for integrated health and social care packages 

 Access to community assets in parallel with health and social care interventions to improve wellbeing, 
reduce social isolation and encourage healthier lifestyles 

56



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   17 | P a g e  

 

1.5.2 Phase 1 – Volunteer Community Navigator Scheme – delivery 16/17 in year 

In order to keep users fit and well early intervention is required as shown in the proposed model.  It is 
aimed at people who might benefit from local information and support to self-care and enhance their health & 

wellbeing; including low to moderate risk service users, their carers, families and the general public.  The overall 
aim being to promote integrated health and social care, partnered with the voluntary and community sector 
by improving access to local voluntary and community resources by providing targeted, up to date 

information to service users and their families.  

 

The scheme provides GPs with a non-medical referral option that can operate alongside existing 
treatments to improve health and well-being.  It can also be accessed by all health and social care 
professionals and well as self-referrals from users.  The scheme is currently on a phased roll-out, starting in 
April 2016 to be able to provide a service to all 13 GP practices in Wokingham by January 2017. 

 

Involve is running the scheme and it requires a part-time employed community navigator coordinator who is 
responsible for: 

 Recruitment of volunteers 

 Training of volunteers 

 Liaison with GP surgeries for roll-out 

 Day to day operational management of the volunteers and the scheme 

 Comms and service profile development 

 

Service Description 

Referrals can be made on-line, by telephone, by email or on a referral form and mailed to the team. 

Once the referral is received the trained volunteer Community Navigators will arrange to meet users at their 
GP surgery or another community venue to identify their community support needs.  

Community Navigators signpost users to appropriate sources of social support and other non-medical 
services within the community, neighbourhood and beyond. 

 

Community Navigators will assist users by: 

 Finding out what they would like to do, their availability, and when. 

 Searching for local charities, community groups and organisations that can meet their needs. 

 Making the first contact with the organisation on their behalf, if they choose. 

Community navigators will follow-up users 4-6 weeks after their appointment to see what services the user 
took up and what other assistance they may require. 

 

1.5.3 Phase 2a  – Developing CHASC Model of Care (delivery in year 16/17) and Phase 2b - 
Implementing CHASC Model of Care (delivery Q1 & Q2 of 17/18) 

Phase 2a - Developing CHASC Model of Care 

The proposal requires significant organisational change and coordination across multiple organisations – 
GPs, BHFT, WBC, Optalis and Involve (voluntary sector). The current services are fragmented with many 
separate teams. The proposal is to form a single MDT team of social workers, nurses, MDT coordinators 
and volunteer community navigators to lead on assessment, care planning and coordination to improve the 
efficiency of the service.  Joint commissioning by Wokingham CCG and WBC has been discussed and will 
be agreed as part of the development phase. 

 

The integration of services across organisations requires clear governance, accountability and 
responsibility arrangements to be set out. This work will be progressed in part through a RACI model 
(Appendix 2) as part of the development phase. 

 

The MCP vanguard sites have shown that a single contractual solution is unlikely to work best everywhere. 
Three broad versions are emerging. The first is the ‘virtual’ MCP, under which individual providers and 
commissioning contracts are bound together by an ‘alliance’ agreement. The second is the ‘partially 
integrated’ MCP contract, the scope of which excludes primary medical services, supported by contractual 
arrangements between the MCP and the GPs to achieve operational integration. The third is the ‘fully 
integrated’ MCP contract model with a single whole-population budget across all primary medical and 57



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   18 | P a g e  

 

community based services.  For CHASC one of these options is likely to work. 

The services in the system are commissioned currently by WBC and Wokingham CCG and this will 
continue to be the case.  It is proposed in phase 2 that BHFT will be the single organisation that will 
manage and deliver the services provided in the system.  In the medium term they will sub-contract 
services e.g. Optalis and Involve, in order that one organisation has the management and oversight of the 
whole system.   There would also be a need for a partnership agreement between BHFT and the locality 
GPs around resources and care delivery. 

 

It is also proposed that a Head Of Community Health and Social Care is employed, as soon as is 
practicable.  This would provide the level of oversight required for the planning and development of the 
model and system.  

 

During the planning phase we will need to consider/include: 

 ‘One Team Ethos’ - Whilst the Community Nursing and the Brokerage and Support team will be 
employed by separate partner organisations initially, both services will be providing care for the same 
cohort of people, but meeting different levels of need, therefore operationally they will need to work 
together as complementary teams with shared outcomes that have been agreed with the person and 
their carer.  As such all people providing the core services outlined in this Business Case will identify 
themselves not through their organisational employment but as a member of the ‘Community Health 
and Social Care’. This will be reinforced through visual signs such as uniform and identification lanyards 
and through shared documentation and processes. 

 Different ways of working – what is the purpose of the persons role and how can it be delivered 

 The delivery of  Wokingham Borough Council statutory duties will require regular reporting to 
Wokingham’s Director of Adult Social Care and lead member for Social Care 

 A different way of communing, social interaction 

 What motivates staff to come to work? 

 The move to remote working – need to think differently about how we do it 

 Investment in technology to enable such working practices (aligned with the Connected Care project 
and milestones) 

 Voluntary Sector support – provision will need to be made to ensure that the voluntary sector is 
appropriately supported 

 Co-design across the system – commissioners, providers and users will all be involved in the design of 
the model and the processes required delivering the model 

 Review and revision of all SLAs for providers 

 Agreement and design of a single care plan 

 

Figure 7 - High Level Project Plan for Development of CHASC Phase 2a 

58



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   19 | P a g e  

 

 

Phase 2b Implementing CHASC Model of Care 

Implementation of the model will start in April 2017.  Phase 2b implementation will focus on the integration 
of the BHFT community nursing, Optalis and Community Navigators services. 

 

Figure 8 – High Level Project Plan for Implementation of CHASC Phase 2b 

 
 

1.5.4. Phase 3a – Delivery around Primary Care (GP alignment in localities and formal agreement on 
working arrangement – between practices and CHASC – Now to May 2017)  and Phase 3b Testing 
Phase with a single locality (September 2017 to December 2017) 

Primary care is now in a position to proceed with an integrated model with community health and social 
care.   

 

The benefits to primary care will be: 

 A reduction in the number of GP appointments for social problems, through the use of Volunteer 
community navigators and enhanced signposting. West Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Ltd MCP 
vanguard has increased the number of its patients signposted by care navigators by forty per cent over 
three months. A care navigation framework (directory of services) is embedded across practices and 
receptionists use this to signpost patients to cost effective and appropriate services to meet their needs 
in a timely manner. 

 Provide accessible and responsive urgent and emergency care by delivering enhanced urgent care 
services, through clinical hubs with patients immediately accessing GPs, nurse prescribers, 
pharmacists and dentists through 111 or a single point of access. Integrated access means that the 
CHASC is able to appropriately divert a proportion of potential urgent and emergency care patients 
away from secondary care but ensure the patient has access to the right point in the system. Better 
Local Care (Southern Hampshire) MCP vanguard has created a ‘same-day access service’, which 
pools together the urgent workload for the participating GP practices into a single service that is 
operated from a central location and is resourced by the practices. In the six weeks from opening in 
December 2015, the service handled 5,500 patients - almost two thirds of whom had their needs met 
over the telephone. 

 

Phase 3a - GP alignment in localities and formal agreement on working arrangement – between practices 
and CHASC  

Considerations for this phase need to include: 

 The Wokingham CCG GP practices will need to agree locality alignments and will need some form of 
alliance federation within the localities 

 GPs will want to agree within each locality which will be the host GP site for the locality CHASC team 
and how the CHASC team will support the sister sites within each locality 

 Clarity will be needed around the practice nurse and community nurses roles, this can be addressed in 
the updated service level agreements with BHFT for Community Nursing 

59



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   20 | P a g e  

 

 Exploration around collective GP and CHASC working, including how GPs would support access and 
deployment of the CHASC services 

 Design and agreement of a single, shared care plan for all providers 

 

Phase 3b – Testing phase with 1 locality 

It is proposed that one geographical locality is developed in order to explore and develop the model with 
the outcomes will helping to shape the other 2 localities.  This would include developing a location in 
Wokingham to provide all the urgent on the day GP appointments, including near patient testing 
diagnostics.  This would enable the GP surgeries to focus and have more time to manage the users with 
long-term conditions who are high risk or high intensity users. 

 

1.5.5 Phase 4 – Development of future plans with wider partners, to work up as a model in 17/18 

There are a wider range of services that could be included in this model.  In order to ensure that the new 
model of care becomes embedded and successful it was decided that in the early phases that these would 
not be included but would be looked at as a future development for 17/18. 

 

1.6 Outcomes  

Avoiding unnecessary emergency hospital admission and / or readmissions is one of the priority outcomes 
of the programme because of the high and rising unit costs of emergency admission compared with other 
forms of care. For service users it is crucial to help them to manage the disruption to their lives and to 
support them to manage their own care in their own homes or care home. 

 

The outcomes will be: 

 Better health for the whole population – by providing targeted, pro-active care and intervening early in a 
person’s illness pathway.  Analysing and using health and social care data collected to target 
interventions where needed. 

 Reduced inequalities in access to health and social care – the system is currently provided by multiple 
organisations working separately, making navigation of the system difficult for people and users.  GPs 
are the first point of access for many people and they will use the health and social care hub as a single 
point of access to services. 

 Improving access to the right service at the right time – by wrapping services around primary care and 
developing social prescribing services and use of the voluntary sector. 

 Reduced variation in outcomes - by removing the complexity that has resulted from different policy 
initiatives over the years; ensuring clear lines of accountability and responsibility for staff 

 Increased quality of care and safety for all patients – through timely, targeted care co-ordination 
provided by one responsible organisation 

 Better value for the taxpayer – by ensuring the response is proportionate to the person’s needs; that 
resource utilisation is streamlined and economies of scale are utilised; targeting the top 10% of users of 
services (1,576 people) and not just the top 2% of service users (315 people). Robust mechanisms for 
the review of long term packages of care. 

 Supporting people to live well in their own homes for as long as they wish and are able to 

 Improve patients experience of health and social care-  by reducing/removing barriers between services 
and professionals; aligning teams to localities to meet the populations needs 

 Contribute to a more sustainable system for the future demand - More efficient working by reducing 
hand-offs, duplication of effort, organisational boundaries and wasted time and reviewing all processes, 
allows for more and better quality interventions.  Implementing appropriate technology where required.  
Introduction of enhanced urgent care services to reduce pressure on GPs 

 

1.7 Benefits 

The financial benefits will be: 

 Reduced NELs 

 Reduced A&E attendances 

 Reduced/delayed cost of social care packages 

 Reduced/delayed care home placements in the long term 

 60



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   21 | P a g e  

 

 

 

The people benefits  will be: 

 People have a higher quality of life, and enjoy their improved health status. The impact of their 
conditions on daily life has been lowered considerably. Evidenced by a reduction in NEL & A&E 
attendance, LOS and readmission within 91 days of those over 65. 

 Improved satisfaction of care. Care will be better organised and of high quality. The proportion of people 
satisfied with the care and support services they receive should increase. There should be less 
fragmentation and duplication. 

 Care and support are centred on the person’s needs. People appreciate that care follows their needs 
and preferences. Their needs and preferences are incorporated in the care plan. 

 People experience pro-active, co-ordinated care and support. Care focuses on improving health status 
and preventing exacerbations. Multi-disciplinary care is co-ordinated by the Care Co-ordinator. People 
experience a seamless service. 

 Care is of high quality and safe. Care is provided according to best practice and meets NHS and Care 
Act standards. Continuous learning framework and monitoring of incidents are in place. 

 People feel empowered, capable of and engage in self-management. People are actively involved in 
care planning and have access to support for self-management. 

 

The Professionals benefits will be: 

 The person is central to how professionals work together in the multi-disciplinary teams. The person’s 
needs and preferences shape what care is delivered and how the MDT delivers this. 

 Professionals enjoy their work as together they ensure people get the care they need. They provide this 
care themselves or this is provided by a colleague of the multi-disciplinary team. 

 Professionals will no longer work together across organisations through multi-disciplinary teams. 
Instead, organisational barriers removed and there will be investment in integration where needed. 

 Professionals work with clear and well-known paths for referral. There is a Single Point of Access and 
the GP and Care Co-ordinator are the key contact points for further information. 

 Increasing mutual respect and trust between different professionals, within and between organisations. 

 

The whole system benefits will be: 

 The system is flexible to meet people’s changing needs over time. People’s needs will vary over time 
with periods with more or less intensive care. The system supports people through these in a seamless 
way. 

 Reduction in use of GP appointments for non-medical problems  

 On-going co-ordination and integration between health and social care partners. Establish integrated 
services that provide co-ordinated and multi-disciplinary care & support with a Single Point of Access. 

 The relations between local providers have strengthened and matured.  

 Financial pressures on local health and social care providers are reducing and stabilising. The current 
resources are able to meet people’s need in the community cost effectively. 

 

1.8 Project Outputs 

As the services will become integrated there will be a range of new products it will be delivering: 

 Shared Paperwork 

 Single Assessment 

 Integrated Policies and Procedures for the Service 

 Shared Risk Stratification tool – to include data sharing from providers to direct care to frequent users of 
health and/or social care 

 Revised MDT structure and delivery 

 True single point of access to long-term health and social care 

 Review of health and social care pathways and integrate/update as required 

 Develop audit tool to measure the quality benefits of the integrated system 

61



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   22 | P a g e  

 

 

The purpose of the following section is to clearly define the benefits to be delivered by the project, how these benefits fit in with local and national strategy to 
deliver person centred coordinated care, and the metrics to be used to measure progress and asses long term impact.  For more information and to assist with 
completing this section please see the NHS England BCF How to Guide – How to understand and Measure impact  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/06/bcf-user-guide-04.pdf.pdf 

 

Impacts & Outcomes 

  
Expected Long Term Impact 

 

 
Project Benefit/s 

 

 
Metric / Measure*  

 

S
c

h
e

m
e

/P
ro

je
c
t 

Improving people’s experience of 
health, care and support 

Improved satisfaction of care. 
The proportion of people satisfied with the care and 
support services they receive should increase. Friends and 
Family Test or locally devised patient questionnaire 

Care and support are centred on the person’s 
needs. 

Audit of patient care plans 

Better Outcomes for patients and 
service users 

People have a higher quality of life, and enjoy 
their improved health status. 

Reduction in NELs, A&E attendances, LOS and 
readmission rates 

People feel empowered, capable of and engage 
in self-management 

Involve devised outcome measure – Ladder of Change 

Care is of high quality and safe Reduction in safeguarding reports, complaints, etc. 

People experience pro-active, co-ordinated care 
and support. 

Audit of notes and locally devised patient questionnaire 

Better Use of Resources 

Reduction in NEL admissions (BCF metric) Reduction of 331 NELs for Wokingham 16/17 vs. 15/16 
NEL activity for top 10% of population when the system 
changes have been made will start to deliver in 17/18 

Reduction in A&E attendances Reduction of 165 A&E attendances for Wokingham 16/17 
vs. 15/16 A&E attendances activity for top 10% of 
population when the system changes have been made will 
start to deliver in 17/18 

Reduced/delayed cost of social care packages Social Care packages - Will be monitored in first instance 
to form a baseline.  Will monitor on a monthly basis, total 
spend of cost of long term care packages, number of social 
care packages, and average cost of social care packages.  
Referrals through to the volunteer community navigator 
scheme and the impact this has on the numbers entering 
long term care. Reduced numbers on waiting lists as 

62

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/06/bcf-user-guide-04.pdf.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/06/bcf-user-guide-04.pdf.pdf


Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   23 | P a g e  

 

redirected to the volunteer scheme. 

Reduced/delayed in permanent care home 
placements (BCF metric) 

Permanent care home placements - Will be monitored in 
the first instance to form a baseline.  Will monitor the 
number of users of social care packages that become care 
home admissions each month.  Also should monitor local 
authority monthly care home placements and total spend 

Reduction in use of GP appointments for non-
medical problems 
 

At present GP activity is not available so unable to 
measure this benefit, but will need to explore how this can 
be measured 

 

 

Performance Metrics 

  
Metric Data Source Baseline 

 
Target / Impact 

 

P
ro

je
c
t/

S
c

h
e

m
e
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

 
Social care packages - Will monitor on a monthly 
basis, total spend on long term care packages, total 
number of social care packages provided , average 
cost of social care packages provided 

Wokingham Borough Council/Optalis data This will provide 
a baseline 

No 
increase/reduction/delay  
in total costs of care 
packages in 
Wokingham in 16/17 

Permanent care home placements - Will monitor the 
number of users of social care packages that 
become permanent care home admissions each 
month.  Also should monitor local authority monthly 
care home placements and total spend 

Wokingham Borough Council/Optalis data This will provide 
a baseline 

No 
increase/reduction/delay 
in local authority spend 
on care home 
placements in 16/17 

Reduction in use of GP appointments for non-
medical problems – will work with the GPs/CNS to 
see if can devise a recording mechanism to be able 
measure any reductions 

GP/CCG data This will provide 
a baseline 

Increase in GP time to 
spend with high 
intensity and high risk 
users 

Whole Systems Working –  
Do Multi-Disciplinary Care Meetings take place? 
Is staff satisfied with whole systems working? 
Are demand and supply balanced across the 
system? 

BHFT Audit - Review MDT meetings and 
discuss staff experience 
At the bi-weekly MDT and reported quarterly 
at the monthly steering group meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Improved whole system 
working 

Care Co-ordination - Care and support are centred 
on the person’s needs 
Has a care plan been established? 
Is there is an appointed co-ordinator of care (self, 

BHFT/Optalis Audit - Analyse the care 
documentation of a random sample of people 
that has been cared 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 

Improved patient 
centred care 

63



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   24 | P a g e  

 

carer or professional care co-ordinator)? meeting forwards 

Q
u

a
li
ty

 

Quality of life and improved health status –  
Can the person fulfil their desired activities of daily 
living (with support)? 
Is their mental wellbeing is good? 
Is their physical wellbeing is good? 
Has there been an admission into acute care? 

BHFT /Optalis Audit - Analyse the care 
documentation of a random sample of people 
that has been cared for and ask feedback 
from a number of service users. 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 
meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Increase in quality of life 
and health status 

People’s experience  and satisfaction of care –  
Is care centred on the person? 
Does the person feel listened to? 
Does the person understand their care and do they 
feel involved? 
Is care consistent and co-ordinated? 
Is quality of care good? 
Does the person feel safe? 
 

BHFT/Optalis- Use the outcomes of the 
Friends and Family test (will need to consider 
use for social care). In addition get feedback 
from a number of service users. 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 
meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Improved patient 
experience 

Pro-active Care – People experience pro-active, co-
ordinated care and support. 
Have the appropriate assessments been 
conducted? 
Has a care plan been established? 
Is the care plan being implemented? 

BHFT/Optalis Audit - Analyse the care 
documentation of a random sample of people 
that has been cared 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 
meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Improved pro-active 
care 

Quality and Safety –  
Does care meet NHS and ASC standards? 
Are evaluation processes on-going? 
Have there been incidents related to whole systems 
approach? 

BHFT/Optalis - Review quality, incidents and 
evaluation 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 
meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Improved quality and 
safety 

Person Centred Care - Care and support are 
centred on the person’s needs 
Has the person been engaged with? 
Is shared decision making taking place? 
Has the person contributed to their care plan? 
Does the person self-manage? 
Is the person’s carer involved when applicable? 

Analyse the care documentation of a random 
sample of people that has been cared 
Quarterly - at the monthly steering group 
meeting 

No baseline 
required and will 
provide a 
baseline moving 
forwards 

Improved person 
centred care 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l Reduction of 299 NELs for Wokingham 16/17 vs. 
15/16 NEL activity for top 10% of population 

CSU monthly NEL report 15/16 activity Reduction of 331 NELs 

Reduction of 150 A&E attendances for Wokingham 
16/17 vs. 15/16 A&E attendances activity for top 
10% of population 

CSU monthly NEL report 15/16 activity Reduction of 165 A&E 
attendances 

 

64



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   25 | P a g e  

Options  

Two options were considered: 

Option 1: Do nothing – Health and social care services for Wokingham will continue unchanged in from 

2016/17 to 2020/21. 

This option should be discounted because it does not improve care for people, align with Wokingham’s 

strategic direction nor deliver financial benefits. 

Option 2: Integrate the long term health and social care teams to provide people with a single health and 

social care system 

Recommendation 

The options have been evaluated against the implications they would have on: the financial resources 

available in the Wokingham health and care economy, co-location of staff, people’s experience of care; 

realising the Integration strategy, clinical quality and staff satisfaction. (Poor – 1, Satisfactory – 2, Good – 

3). 

 Financial 

Affordability 

Co-

location 

of staff 

People’s 

experience 

of care 

Realisation 

of 

integration 

strategy 

Care 

quality 

Staff 

satisfaction 

Total 

Option 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 10 

Option 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 

 
Option 2 is the preferred option as it balances the need to make rapid progress towards an integrated, 
multi-disciplinary approach to care, while being able to work within the current financial constraints. 
 

 
 

Assumptions and Constraints 

Assumptions 

 That all Wokingham health and social care organisations will agree to the project and the integration of 
their services to work in the best possible way for patients/users.  To date there has been no feedback 
from any of the Wokingham organisations that they are opposed to the project. 

 There will be a framework to support, and set expectations for, locality working 

 Strong leadership to facilitate the creation of a collaborative culture that emphasises team working and 
the delivery of highly co-ordinated, consistent and patient-centred care 

 Effective IT systems in place to support delivery of care via localities and that appropriate and relevant 
information is available to the right people in a timely and easily accessible manner 

 Suitable accommodation is available within each locality or centrally to provide a team base.  This will 
require review of community asset mapping work previously undertaken, discussion with the Core 
Strategy group and planners, and approaches to local businesses to enquire about possible assets. 

 Patients are open to the concept of “patient activation” (Hibbard, J; Gilburt, H; 2014). This refers to a 
person’s knowledge, skills, ability and willingness to manage their health and care. Staff need the 
necessary skills and training to support people within a model of self-care, as this goes beyond the 
provision of information and understanding of their condition(s) to train and empower patients and 
carers.   

 There will need to be discussion and agreement across the Wokingham BCF schemes at WISP to 
ensure that KPI measurement across all schemes to ensure that there are no benefits overlaps or 
double counting.  The solution may be to have a single target across schemes e.g. combining NEL 
benefits from WISH and CHASC ( circa 370 NELs for WISH and 331 NELs for CHASC would become a 

65



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   26 | P a g e  

 

target of 701 NEL reduction)  

 BHFT will be the main provider of the Community Health and Social Care Project and will sub-contract 
the services required to deliver the project.  This assumption has been made as for the following 
reasons: 

o It enables the project to be delivered at speed as it will be the least disruptive 
o Optalis has no experience of managing health services but BHFT have experience of managing 

social care services 
o As part of the 21st century council plans, WBC plans to be a commissioner and not a provider so 

this meets the council’s strategic needs. 
 
Constraints 

 Ensure that in the modelling of the service that local authority statutory duties are able to be carried out 
according to legislation 

 The role out of the Connected Care project as the sharing of patient information is essential for the 
pathway 

 Culture change is a key component in the delivery of new ways of working and may have an impact on 
the speed of delivery of the programme 
 

 
 

Scope and Exclusions   

Scope 

The following ‘core’ services are proposed to be included in the first phase of Neighbourhood Cluster 
development:  

 Community matrons and District nurses 

 Adult long term care - Brokerage & long term support 

 CMHT (18-65 yrs.) and COAMHS (65 yrs. +) – in scope but in a longer term approach 

 Volunteer Community Navigators 

 Commissioning of prevention services and Carer’s services that support long-term care 

 Primary Care - GP Surgery staff 

          

NOT in scope, as least initially, although the ambition would be to coordinate development of future plans in 
association with these partners: 

 Public Health 

 Services where there are a limited number of professional resources (e.g. Specialist nursing teams) 

 Community development 

 Libraries  

 Sport & leisure  

 Employment support 

 Housing support 

 Children’s services – transition services 

 Acute services 

 

Exclusions 

Health and social care services for the following groups will be excluded from the project at this stage but 
may be considered appropriate at some point in the future: 

 Children’s services 

 

GPs 

Determination of the ownership of GP practices is excluded from the project.   

Shinfield Medical Practice is included in this model, although it is within South Reading CCG, as a large 
proportion of the patients registered at this surgery live in Wokingham borough. 

66



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   27 | P a g e  

 

 

Dependencies 

 

 
 

As shown above it is clear that CHASC is connected to a whole community strategy.  It naturally focusses 
on health and social care, but both of those things exist within a wider social construct. CHASC is a leading 
component of sustainable communities that includes public health, housing, leisure, community safety, 
wider prevention etc.  

 

Development of this project will need to align with the following programmes: 

• Care Act implementation – especially regarding provision of co-ordinated care and enhancing the 
provision of comprehensive information and advice about care and support services in the local area; 

• Frail Elderly pathway; 

• Public Health outcomes framework and development of the Public Health prevention strategy; 

• Structures will dovetail with those established for the accountable named GPs and the unplanned 
admissions DES/CES; 

• The development of new provider models;   

• Primary Care Development Strategy; and  

• The implementation of the GP DxS (clinical information tool) system. 

 

Specifically within the Better Care Fund Programme: 

• Integrated Health & Social Care Hub (BCF 01), in particular avoiding duplication in approach to 
information provision for self-care and prevention; 

• Enhancement of the quality of medical cover for all adult residents of registered Care Homes in 
Berkshire West (BCF06) 

• The implementation of the Berkshire West Connected Care scheme (BCF 07), including the 
electronic sharing of demographic information using the NHS number as the unique identifier, will 
significantly enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the NCTs; and 

• WISH (BCF 09), in particular ensuring processes for moving between WISH and CHASC are joined 
up 

 

Many of these dependencies are programmes and projects being run at a Berkshire West level.  For 
locality working within Wokingham borough to reflect local needs, Berkshire West initiatives will need to 
allow for a local dimension where appropriate. 

67



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   28 | P a g e  

 

Section 2 - Economic and Affordability Case 

Budget / Cost Summary  

 

Costs of operation & implementation 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 

Localities           

One off costs for implementation 83,000 82,100 0 0 0 

On-going costs for running operations 25,552 200,341 99,243 99,243 99,243 

Total costs 108,552 282,441 99,243 99,243 99,243 

A breakdown of the cost calculations can be seen in Appendix 3. 

 

Source of Funding: 

The Community Health and Social Care project is BCF Funded, with additional funding coming from 
Wokingham’s BCF funds.  For The Project Manager post is hosted by Wokingham Borough Council and 
Wokingham CCG. 
 
One-off costs for implementation  
At this stage of the project we have identified the following one-off costs: 
1. Project Manager Costs  
In order to be able to scope, plan and implement the significant change require a project manager is 
required.  Indicative costs of the resourcing are: 
• Interim post £450 per day  
2. Local programme office support 
All BCF projects in Wokingham have access to local programme office support provided by the BCF 
programme manager and support officer.  These costs are split between all the Wokingham BCF projects. 
 
On-going costs for running operations  
At this stage of the project we have identified the following costs.  Within this there are also some one off 
costs: 
1. Restructure of the MDT Care coordinators (16/17) 
There is funding for 2 WTE MDT administrators, at a higher banding, within BHFT current budgets. The 
roles were reviewed as part of this project and were down banded and changed to coordinator roles.  In 
order to deliver the locality model an additional MDT co-ordinator is required. The surplus funds generated 
by the change in banding nearly allows for the additional post.  An additional £1,000 is required for BHFT to 
fund this final post. 
2. Voluntary / Charity provision (17/18) 
A one off placeholder for charity and voluntary sector has been added in 17/18 as increased numbers of 
users may be directed towards them. We will carry out a review in 17/18 to assess the impact and whether 
we would need to provide additional funding for this sector. 
3. Training for new virtual model of delivery (17/18) 
The project plans to deliver a new model of working and there may be training needs for the different staff 
groups and this has been built in to recognise this. 
4. IT infrastructure costs(17/18) 
BHFT and WBC have differing IT systems, governance of those systems and hardware available to staff.  
We have already identified that working in a different way may have implications on IT costs e.g. Firewall 
issues, hardware suitable for remote working. 
5. Property costs (17/18) 
There may be moving costs and impacts on rents.  It is unlikely that additional assets or equipment will be 
required in year as each team will have those and it should be a case of moving these if required. The 
project is proposing to co-locate and integrate the services that are involved in long term health and social 
care, there may be some costs to make existing premises fit for purpose or finding new premises, but as 
yet this is an unknown at present.  The current rental cost of the space used by the teams is circa £160,000 
which is the current market rate for the equivalent space. 
 
The on-going costs that will be incurred year on year are: 
1. Volunteer Community Navigator Scheme, including travel and training costs (from 16/17) 
The volunteer community navigator scheme will be staffed by volunteers but a part-time service lead is 
needed to manage, recruit and train the volunteers.  This role will also lead the development and 68



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   29 | P a g e  

 

implementation of the scheme in practices and across the borough as the service rolls out.  Volunteers will 
require training and there are costs associated with this and volunteers will need to be offered travel 
expenses incurred whilst performing the role. 
2. Investment in MDT (from 17/18) 
MDTs will be the central tool for care coordination and ensuring care delivery.  We have recognised that 
there may be additional support requirements for the MDT process to be able to manage the top 10% of 
users and have built in some investment here for review in 17/18. 
3. Marketing and promotion (from 16/17) 
The programme will require a robust communications plan and may require some professionally produced 
information for service users and staff.  At this stage of the programme there are no confirmed 
requirements. 
 
It is not anticipated that there will be any increased costs in staffing in the health and social care teams as 
there are no new posts required. The current health and social care team staffing cost is circa £3,762,000, 
this includes on costs but not overheads.  
 

 

Planned Savings/Efficiencies 

 

Benefits 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 

A&E admissions avoidance 0 -14,025 -28,050 -28,050 -28,050 

NEL's avoidance 0 -177,742 -355,484 -355,484 -355,484 

Care Home avoidance 0 -119 -10,068 -10,068 -10,068 

Early intervention opportunities 0 -20,421 -73,637 -73,637 -73,637 

Total Benefits 0 -212,307 -467,239 -467,239 -467,239 

              

Net cost / (Benefit) 108,552 70,134 -367,996 -367,996 -367,996 

              

Cumulative Net Cost / (Benefit) 108,552 178,686 -189,311 -557,307 -925,303 

 
Net present value  -£774,959 
Payback              18/19 
ROI                          134% 
A breakdown of the savings calculations can be seen in Appendix 3 
The business case uses SUS data for non-elective admissions (NELs) during 2015/16 within the 
Wokingham locality as the basis for determining savings to the programme.  There are 2 elements of the 
service that have a direct contribution the overall total savings – Community Navigators and Community 
Health and Social Care 
 
Efficiency/Savings 
An indication from other similar schemes is that there is a potential for savings and these will come 
predominantly from: 

 Reduced NELs 

 Reduced A&E attendances 
 
We recognise that this project also has the potential for savings from: 

 Reduction in care home placement 

 Reduction in care package funding 
 
Assumptions 
We have had to build in assumptions for the targets, based on estimates of the impact of an evolving 
project over its first few years. More ambitious targets will undoubtedly be achieved from year 2 onwards, 
as locality based working becomes ‘business as usual’ and as more volunteer Community Navigators are 
recruited and confidence in their effectiveness increases and as improved provision of targeted information 
to enable people to self-care and prevent further ill health further delays or prevents people’s dependence 
on health and social care services. 

69



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   30 | P a g e  

 

 
1. Reduced NELs  
In order to be able calculate the number of NELs the project can reduce a year the following information 
was reviewed. 
Wokingham 15/16 NEL activity 

o 9013 NEL admissions 19+ years and above 
o 315 people (19+ years and above) in Wokingham have been identified as the top 2% of 

health and social care users and accounted for 1567 NELs, an average of 5 NELs, per 
person 

o 473 people (19+ years and above) in Wokingham have been identified as the top 3-5% of 
health and social care users and accounted for 1286 NELs, an average of 3 NELs per 
person 

o 788 people (19+ years and above) in Wokingham have been identified as the top 5-10% of 
health and social care users and accounted for 1576 NELs, an average of 2 NELs per 
person 

The activity above demonstrates the use of health by very high intensity service users (top 2%) and the 
high risk service users (top 3-10%).  By changing the model of care it will be possible to better support 
these users and reduce the NELs activity.   
 
Wokingham’s NEL growth was reported as 5% for 15/16 and YTD 16/17 (year to date) NEL growth is 
2.99% (N.B. the percentage growth includes the 0 – 19 age group).  By integrating services and taking a 
system approach the project aims to reduce NELs in this group by 7.5%.  This percentage target was 
agreed as it will not only halt the annual NEL growth seen in 15/16 (5%) that has been experienced year on 
year, but aims for a small, but realistic downward trajectory (2.5%). 
 
Therefore we propose the following NEL reductions: 

o Top 2%  - 1567/100 x 7.5 = 117 NEL reduced 
o Top 3-5% - 1286/100 x 7.5 = 96 NELs reduced 
o Top 5-10% - 1576/100 x 7.5 = 118 NELs reduced 

 
TOTAL NEL reduction – 331 per year. 
 
Assumes relatively low end needs on entry, therefore tariff rates reflected accordingly based on 5 day rate 
as per SUSD £1,073.97 
 
2. Reduced A&E Attendances 
The reduction in A&E attendances has been conservatively calculated based on NEL admission avoidance, 
based on 50% of the NEL activity reduction for the top 10% of service users.  Calculated at £170 per 
admission 
 
3. Reduction in funding of social care packages 
Expectation is the navigator scheme will still achieve reductions in this area as users that may have 
required packages of care or higher levels of packages of care could be supported by voluntary/charity 
sector services. We have assumed that 24% of referrals will lead to benefits from reduced social care 
packages and have calculated a cost benefit of £175 per month (represents 15% reduction on cost of 
average social care package). 
 
4. Reduction in care home placements  
On the basis the above is successful this will naturally lead to reductions in home care placements (suggest 
this could be year 3 before an effect is seen)  This has been calculated based on those for whom the 
provision of adequate support in the community results in delay in care home admission, assumes delayed 
entry of 24 months, therefore generates 24 months of cumulative benefit – balanced by the assumption that 
those kept from care home placements require a home care package, therefore applying same rate as 
WISH assumptions.   
We have assumed that of the 24% of navigator referrals that result in a reduction in funding of social care, 
25% of those will benefit from a delay in care home placement which is calculated at differential between 
£681 per week which is the care home cost versus £267 per week which is the cost of a social care 
package when the user remains in their own home, which is £414 per week. 
 
 

70



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   31 | P a g e  

 

Phasing Assumptions 

 There will be a slower uptake in year 1 and 2 as the scheme develops and is implemented 

 There will be greater impact in year 2 and subsequent years, as more volunteer Community Navigators 
are recruited and the Community Health and Social care system integrates, there is greater awareness 
of their presence and increased confidence in their effectiveness  

 For community navigators implemented a year 1 & 2 uptake to reduce levels of activity as scheme is 
embedded into GP’s practices (referrals roughly aligned with current activity) 

 Benefits realised from home care  is 1 year post referral  

 The percentage of those benefiting from community care and avoidance of home care will result in a 
longer term saving to Res care. 

 In the longer term, more admissions and more A&E attendances will be prevented through the impact of 
targeted early self-care / prevention 

 
Impact of Non-Financial Outcomes 
An important consideration for investment is the impact on non-financial outcomes: 

 The programme will support the Wokingham health and social care economy to achieve its strategic 
aims. 

 The programme is expected to make a significant impact on people’s experience of care and their 
health outcomes. 

 The programme supports commissioners and providers to develop a sustainable health and care 
economy. 

o Reduced cost of social care packages 
o Reduced care home placements 
o Reduced non-medical GP appointments 

 In addition, the programme also aims to transform the way organisations work together and as such 
contribute positively to the work satisfaction of local health and care professionals. 

 
 
‘Dis-benefits’ 

 There may be a reduction in income for the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust as project aims to 
reduce NEL and A&E activity  

 BHFT currently rent rooms from GP surgeries at varying costs; this could be a loss of income for the 
GPs if the community nurses were to vacate. 

 Optalis currently rents its office space from WBC for is Brokerage and Support team, this would be a 
loss of income for WBC, but they may want to re-negotiate with Optalis on the overall contract if this 
was built into existing contractual arrangements with Optalis.  

 
Payback period 
The project is expected to return a net saving in 2018/19.  
 
 

71



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   32 | P a g e  

 

Section 3 - Project Approach & Governance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Project Milestones (to include initial start date, main delivery points and Go Live date) 

Milestone  Milestone Description  Date Owner/Lead 

1 Present draft business case to the Steering Group 13/9/16 Project 
Manager 

2 

 

Present final business case to WISP for approval 14/11/16 Project 
Manager/WISP 

3 Present final business case to Health and Well-being board for 
approval 

November 
& 
December 
2016 

Project 
Manager/HWB 

4 Present final business case to relevant CCG, BHFT and WBC 
boards for approval 

October & 
November 
2016 

SROs 

5 On-going roll-out of the community navigator service On-going 
to January 
2017 

Involve 

6 Prepare detailed project plan November 
2016 

Project 
Manager 

7 Phase 2a Design and Engagement Phase – including the 
recruitment of the Head of CHASC 

November 
2016 to 
March 
2017  

Project 
Manager/ 
Providers/ 
Service Users 

8 Phase 2b Implementation of CHASC April to 
September 
2017 

Project 
Manager & 
Providers 

9 Phase 3a  Delivery around Primary Care (GP alignment in 
localities and formal agreement on working arrangement – 
between practices and CHASC) 

 

November 
2016 to 
May 2017 

Project 
Manager, SRO 
& GP practices 

10 Phase 3b  Testing Phase with a single locality  

 

September 
2017 to 
December 
2017 

Project 
Manager, 
CHASC & GPs 

11 Phase 4 Development of future plans with wider partners, to 
work up as a model in 17/18 

 

September 
2017 to 
December 
2017 

Project 
Manager & 
Head of 
CHASC 

72



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   33 | P a g e  

 

Delivery Chain 

The provision of coordinated services though the Community Health and Social Care project is likely to be 
commissioned by Wokingham CCG in conjunction with Wokingham Borough Council and provided through 
integrated teams of multi-disciplinary professionals within the Wokingham borough area.  Responsibilities 
and governance will need to be established. Providers of services will include:  

 General practice 

 Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 

 Wokingham Borough Council 

 Optalis 

 Voluntary sector organisations 
 
The resources for delivery by partners, where applicable, been fully considered.  At present only some GPs 
are engaged in the project as primary care has yet to decide it long term strategy and plans at present.  All 
other partners are fully engaged and part of the project planning.  
 
The roles, responsibilities & accountability of the stakeholders in this programme are summarised below. 

 
 

Project Organisation, Governance and Controls 

Project implementation 

Draft refreshed PID to be presented to WISP in September 2016. This will be following consultation through 
the Steering Group and with key stakeholders.   

 

A project Steering Group is in place to lead on the strategic development and implementation the on-going 
review and monitoring to ensure success of the project post initial implementation of the Community Health 
and Social Care Project.  A key focus will be ensuring that all enabling work areas critical to the success of 
the project are engaged and involved in delivery, from development through to implementation and that 
there is a co-ordinated, coherent set of plans in place to achieve the agreed changes and that these are 
well communicated across all organisations involved.  The Community Health & Social Care steering group 
membership and meeting frequency has been reviewed and refreshed and is meeting monthly on the 1st 
Tuesday of the month.  

 

The Steering Group will report into WISP via Highlight reports and where necessary exception report to the 
SRO outside of these meetings. The steering group will work within the scope of the project as identified 
within the PID. 

 

At present there is a project manager in post 3 days a week to deliver this project.  The project manager will 
develop a robust implementation plan once the PID is approved to identify what is required to deliver the 
change. The Project manager will develop appropriate work streams and will develop working groups to 
deliver the work of the work streams. 

 

 73



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   34 | P a g e  

 

Project Structure 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

↕ 

WISP 

↕ 

Steering Group ↔ Task and Finish Groups 

↕ 

(may require Locality Working Groups x 3) 

 

Governance Structure 

 
 

 

Governance Group and Roles 

A dedicated steering group has been established to oversee the development and implementation of the 
project.  The accountability for the delivery of this programme will be to WISP. Local assurance, 
troubleshooting and escalation will be via the Steering Group. 

 

Steering group reporting bi-monthly to Wokingham Integration Strategic Partnership, and through them, into 
the Wokingham Borough Health and Wellbeing Board. The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) has 
strategic oversight and governance for related projects within the Better Care Fund. 

 

Monthly written update reports will contain details of progress to date, achievements in the current period 
and achievements expected in the next period, details of actual or potential problems and suggestions for 
their resolution.  Exception reports will be produced when any stage of the project plan deviates outside 

74



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   35 | P a g e  

 

tolerance limits. Exception reports will detail the problem, outline the available options and identify the 
recommended option; 

 

The steering group will also feed into the Frail Elderly Programme and the Berkshire West 10 Integration 
Programme.   

 

There are joint SRO arrangements for the programme, having a SRO from both Health and Social care.   

The project manager will report to joint SROs and day to day operational support is provided by the 
Wokingham BCF Programme Manager. 

 

Membership 

Joint SROs:  

• Katie Summers, Director of Operations, Wokingham CCG  

• Stuart Rowbotham, Director Health and Wellbeing Wokingham Borough Council 

 

Scheme Project Manager: Rhian Warner 

 

Steering Group Members 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As required additional staff will be invited to the steering group as and when required and may include the 
following: 

• CCG Manager 

• WBC representative with strategic/policy/development perspective 

• GP from each cluster 

• Practice Manager  

• Practice Nurse  

• MH Lead 

• WBC – Community Development Worker link 

• Voluntary / community organisation(s)   

• Patient/service users (e.g. from PPG Forum; social care user, co-production network),  

• Health and Well-being Board member and/or one of the local ward members. 

Name Role 

Katie Summers 
Director of Operations, NHS Wokingham CCG; Joint 
SRO for this scheme  

Stuart Rowbotham 
Director Health and Wellbeing; Wokingham  Borough 
Council; Joint SRO for this scheme 

Johan Zylstra &  

Matt Shaw 

GP, Finchampstead; Clinical Lead for East Cluster 
GP, Brookside: ACS GP Provider Lead 

David Cahill 
Director- Wokingham Locality, Berkshire Healthcare 
Foundation Trust 

TBC (vacant post) Wokingham BCF Programme Manager 

Mette Jakobsen  Optalis 
 

Philip Cook  General Manager; Involve – Wokingham  

Kevin Ward Service user representation -  joint chair of the Place 
and Community Partnership  

Darrell Gale Consultant In Public Health, Wokingham Borough 
Council 

Nicola Strudley Healthwatch Wokingham 

Mike Chow Finance Lead Wokingham BCF,  Wokingham Borough 
Council 

Rhian Warner Community Health and Social Care Project Manager 

75



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   36 | P a g e  

 

 

As this programme is proposed as a BW10 Integration project it will  develop and maintain the following key 
control documents for monthly submission to WISP, the Health & Well-being Board and the BW10 Project 
Management Office (for BWPB / FEP): 

• Monthly Highlight/Status report 

• Programme Initiation Document and Business Cases 

• Delivery Milestone plans 

• Risks & Issues and Dependency logs 

• Monthly Financial forecast and spend to date statements 

 

The project will have a 6 month post project completion evaluation against the projects objectives and key 
outputs and include: 

• Implementation review 

• Finance review 

• Activity review 

• Benefit realisation 

• Risks review 

• Lesson learnt 

 

 

Information Governance 

Once operational, the multi-disciplinary teams of staff working within the localities will comply with all 
requirements regarding data protection and confidentiality. 

 

This project will involve the use of personal data across multiple organisations within the Berkshire West 10 
Partnership.  In order to ensure the safe governance of information the following will need to be delivered:  

• Development of information sharing agreements and protocols to allow effective data sharing 

• Capitalisation of the implementation of ‘connected care’ and additional IT sharing solutions 

• Shared documentation   

• Raise awareness of information governance requirements with staff     

• Clarity re: information requirements and who needs access to information  

• Connected Care BCF project to progress integrated information system 

 

The Adjusted Clinical Groups® (ACG) System is used to help identify health needs and commissioning 
issues, this data is anonymised. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   37 | P a g e  

 

Risks Management and Contingency Plans 

The project has already identified potential risks as well as mitigations to the delivery of the project; these 
can be seen in the table below with a brief summary of the proposed controls and mitigating actions.  

 

The project is already has a Project Risk log and the project manager is responsible for managing the risk 
register and escalating risk as required.  The Risk Log is attached as an appendix. 

 

The review of the risk log will be a standing item on the Steering Group agenda, to ensure regular, monthly, 
review of risks and appropriate escalation.  Any high risks will be escalated to the Wokingham BCF 
Programme Risk Register, which is reviewed at the monthly WISP board meeting. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
77



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   38 | P a g e  

 

Section 4 – Co-production, Engagement and Communications 

 

Patient/Service User Engagement and Co-production plan outline 

The intention is to fully engage with all key stakeholders during the process of developing the Community 
Health and Social Care Service, with the scoping, planning and delivery being co-produced through health 
and social care professionals working closely together to design the most effective model for the service. 

 

Local patients/social care clients, their families/carers, and all relevant support organisations and 
communities will also be involved and engaged with the design, planning, implementation and delivery of 
the service, with specific input into the detail around focusing on self-care and primary prevention. 

 

Engagement will be co-designed between the CCG and the unitary authority. 

 

Key  stakeholders to be engaged with are: 

 Service users (including patients and carers) and / or their representatives, including local voluntary 
organisations 

 Borough and parish councillors 

 Service providers: general practice; community nursing teams; local authority teams; mental health 
staff, voluntary sector organisations; acute and community trusts 

 Public health team regarding prevention and self-care in particular 

 

In order to ensure co-production and engagement of users/patients a plan will be devised which would 
include: 

• A patient/user representative on the steering group - COMPLETED 

• Regular workshops/engagement sessions with staff and service users 

• Regular feedback to Integration board, Health and Well-being Board and Healthwatch 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

As part of the development of this BC, we have conducted an Equalities Impact Assessment Screening 
process. This has been informed by the previous cases and the stakeholder engagement activity.  We have 
come to the conclusion that the proposed programme will not negatively impact any of the protected 
Equality groups. The programme aim is to have a positive impact upon the provision of health and care 
services on all people over the age of 18 in Wokingham. This will indirectly also benefit their carers and 
families.  

None of the aspects has scored over the threshold of 8 and therefore does not require sign off by the 
quality team. See Appendix 4. 

 

Key Stakeholders/ Clinical Engagement and communications plan outline 

Key Stakeholders 

 Director of Adult Services, Wokingham Borough Council 

 Director of Operations, Wokingham CCG 

 Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust (Community Nursing, Adult Mental Health Services and 
specialist services) 

 Optalis 

 Involve and volunteer community navigators 

 Public Health 

 Public/Patient representatives (Service users/lay partners) 

 Healthwatch  

 Front-line staff (inc. managers) 78



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   39 | P a g e  

 

 Service development staff 

 WBC Commissioners  

 WISP 

 Wokingham Health and Well-being board 

 Voluntary sector 

 Estates services, WBC and BHFT 

 Adult Safeguarding, WBC 

 Housing support, WBC 

 BW10 Project Management Office 

 Community development 

 Libraries, WBC 

 Sport & leisure, WBC 

 Employment support, WBC 

 Children’s services – transition services 

 

Details of partner engagement already undertaken 

Clusters: 

• Stakeholder (GP / WBC) workshop (December 2014) 

• Stakeholder (GP) workshop (January 2015) 

• WISP (January 2015) 

• Practice Managers (January 2015) 

• Council Executive members (January 2015) 

• Have Your Say events (March 15) 

• Patient Participation Group Forum (March 2015) 

• Health and Wellbeing Board (May 2015) 

 

Overall, these stakeholders indicated their general support for the concept and proposals for neighbour 
cluster teams. There was a view that, given the complexity of the project, it is important that timescales are 
realistic. The need for suitable transport and access was an issue that was raised by many stakeholders. 

 

Prevention: 

• Patient Participation Group Forum (January 2015) 

• Place & Community Partnership / Co-production Network (January 15); 

• Survey regarding maximising independence through prevention and self-care (February 15) 

 

Partner Engagement Planned 

At present there are no planned partner engagement events until the PID has been agreed.  Once the PID 
has been agreed the project manager will work with WBC Community engagement team to plan what is 
required. 

 

Clinical Input Requirements 

The project require will require clinical input and this will this be sought through the following: 

• Engagement sessions with front-line staff 

• Programme planning; programme design forums and establishment of programme design teams 

• Knowledge sharing and ‘up-skilling’ of workforce 

• Implementing new staffing models based on the new model of care 

 

Communications Plan 

A communication plan needs to be developed.  Consultation and engagement with professionals and 
service users will continue throughout the trial period and during the evaluation phase. Recognising the 
potential challenges involved with meeting the needs of all sectors of the local population, the feasibility of 
seeking the views of those “seldom heard” within the population will be considered. 

79



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   40 | P a g e  

 

Section 5 - Document Information 

Document Title Wokingham Community Health & Social Care (CHASCC) – (Neighbourhood Clusters, 
Self-Care and Prevention) BCF Project 

File path\Filename Format Comments 

BW10 PID and Business case Wokingham 
Community Health and Social Care Sept 2016 vs. 
1.3 

 

MS Word Main Document 

 

Supporting Documents Format Location/ Comments 

1. Project/Programme Plan Excel Will be submitted as an additional document 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment N/A Appendix 3 in this document 

3. Wokingham Neighbourhood 
Clusters, Self-Care and Primary 
Prevention Initiation Document  and 
Business Case (Draft v 8.1) 14th 
August 2015 

MS Word Author: Jane Brooks 

Will be submitted as an additional document 

4. BCF BUSINESS CASE 2016/17 
Prepared for WISP Feb 2016; 
updated 05-5-16 (draft v 8) 
Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care 
and Prevention 

MS Word Author: Jane Brooks and James Burgess 

Will be submitted as an additional document 

5. DISCUSSION PAPER Wokingham 
Neighbourhood Clusters – structure 
and organisation Feb 16 (draft v 
2.0) 

MS Word Author: Jane Brooks 

Will be submitted as an additional document 

 

Responsibilities 

Distribution Project Manager 

Ownership Project Steering Group and WISP 

Maintenance Project Manager 

 

Distribution of Final Version 

Copy Keeper Area Purpose Media 

1 Programme Manager Programme Office Reference Paper & 
Electronic 

2 Knowledge Library Programme Office Master Electronic 

 

Version History 

Version No./ 
Status 

Issue Date Author Quality Review/ 
Change Date 

Reviewed By Brief Description of 
Action/Changes 

1.1 Draft August 
2016 

Rhian Warner 13th September 
2016 

Steering Group 
& Rhian 
Warner 

Addition of 
Financials, 
proposed model of 
care and further 
detail in 
Background 
section 

1.2 Final September 
2016 

Rhian Warner 29th September 
2016 

Steering Group 
& Rhian 
Warner 

Removal of 
structure options 
and minor 
amendments in 
Background 
section 80



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   41 | P a g e  

 

1.3 Final October 
2016 

Rhian Warner 17th October 
2016 

SROs Adding in GPs into 
the model, minor 
changes to steering 
group board 
members 

1.4 Final November 
2016 

Rhian Warner 3rd November Steering Group Final review and 
changes to the 
order of the 
narrative in the 
PID. Update of the 
project phasing 

1.5 Final November 
2016 

Rhian Warner 16th November SROs Addition of 
commissioning and 
improved wording 
to percentage 
growth  

 

 

 

Sign Off & Approval (of finances, proposed development) 

Name & Lead function (e.g. Finance, CCG lead, 
LA Lead): 

Authorisation signature: 

Wokingham Integrated Strategic Partnership - 
Stuart Rowbotham 

 

BHFT  

Wokingham Borough Council  

Wokingham Health and Wellbeing Board  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
81



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   42 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 – Wokingham CCG and Local Authority Population Demographics 

 

This data has been taken from: 

 Wokingham Clinical Commissioning Group: Locality Profile 2015, Public Health Services for 
Berkshire, November 2015 

 Commissioning for Value: Where to Look, January 2016, Right Care Profile, Gateway ref: 04599 

 

Wokingham’s population is approximately 159,097 at the 30th June 2015 and with 99.9% registered with 
one of the 13 GP practices who belong to the Wokingham CCG group 

 

Brookside Group Practice Burma Hills Surgery Finchampstead Surgery 

Loddon Vale Practice New Wokingham Road Surgery Parkside Family Practice 

Swallowfield Medical Practice Twyford Surgery Wargrave Surgery 

Wilderness Road Surgery Wokingham Medical Centre Woodley Centre Surgery 

Woosehill Surgery   

 

Population Profile 

 

 
 

 

Demography 

Key demographics from the 2011 census show the following: 

82



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   43 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

 

Hospital Activity 

Wokingham CCG had 80,807 hospital admissions for people aged 18 and over from April 2012 to March 
2015. The majority (72%) of these admissions were at Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust. 

 
 

42.5% of hospital admissions for Wokingham CCG residents (aged 18 and over) were non-elective and 
these made up 82% of bed days from April 2012 to March 2015. 

 

 
 

The table below summarises Wokingham CCG’s non-elective hospital admissions for April 2012 to March 
2015 showing the ten most common reasons for admission. 

 

83



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   44 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

Further analysis of the data has shown that there are opportunities to reduce admissions to hospital. 

 Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions (ACSCs) include admissions 
for long-term conditions such as asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, hypertensive disease, dementia and heart 
failure. These are admissions which could be prevented by effective community care and case-
management. 

In 2014/15, Wokingham CCG had 825 unplanned admissions for ACSCs. This is 546 admissions per 
100,000 population. The rate of admissions in the CCG continues to be significantly lower than the 
national rate. 

 Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not usually require hospital admission include 
disease such as influenza, pneumonia, urinary tract infections and cellulitis. These should be managed 
without the patient needing to be admitted to hospital. 

In 2014/15, Wokingham CCG had 1,320 emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not 
require admission. This is 882 admissions per 100,000 population. The rate of admissions in the CCG 
continues to be significantly lower than the national rate and CCG Comparator group. 

 

Complex Patients 

The following data include analysis on inpatient admissions, outpatient and A&E attendances for the 2% of 
patients that the CCG spends the most on for inpatient admissions (covered by mandatory tariff) in 
2013/14. Whilst this analysis only focuses on secondary care due to availability of data, it is expected that 
these patients are fairly representative of the type of complex patients that will require the most treatment 
across the health and social care system 

84



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   45 | P a g e  

 

 

 Your average complex patient has 7 inpatient admissions per year across 3 different conditions(based 
on programme budgeting categories) 

o Your CCG spends most on Circulation, Cancer and Musculo skeletal 

o 60% of these complex patients are aged 65 or over 

o 34% of these complex patients are aged 75 or over 

o 10% of these complex patients are aged 85 or over 

 91% of the complex patients also had an outpatient attendance during the year 

o 56% of those patients had more than 5 attendances 

o 15% had more than 15 attendances 

o The average patient had 9 attendances a year 

 80% of the complex patients also had an A & E attendance during the year 

o 9% of those patients had more than 5 attendances 

o The average patient had 3 attendances a year 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 – RACI Model/Matrix 

 

The RACI model is a straightforward tool used for identifying roles and responsibilities and avoiding 
confusion over those roles and responsibilities during a project. The acronym RACI stands for: 

 

 Responsible: The person who does the work to achieve the task. They have responsibility for getting 
the work done or decision made. As a rule this is one person; examples might be a business analyst, 
application developer or technical architect. 

 Accountable: The person who is accountable for the correct and thorough completion of the task. This 
must be one person and is often the project executive or project sponsor. This is the role that 
responsible is accountable to and approves their work. 

 Consulted: The people who provide information for the project and with whom there is two-way 
communication. This is usually several people, often subject matter experts. 

85



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   46 | P a g e  

 

 Informed: The people kept informed of progress and with whom there is one-way communication. 
These are people that are affected by the outcome of the tasks, so need to be kept up-to-date. 

 

Without clearly defined roles and responsibilities, it is easy for projects to run into trouble. When people 
know what management expect of them, it is easier for them to complete their work on time, within budget 
and to the right level of quality. 

 

A RACI matrix supports the model and is used to discuss, agree and communicate roles and 
responsibilities. 

 

Creating a RACI Matrix (step-by-step) 

1. Identify all the tasks involved in delivering the project and list them on the left-hand side of the chart in 
completion order. 

2. Identify all the project roles and list them along the top of the chart. 

3. Complete the cells of the chart identifying who has the responsibility, the accountability and who will be 
consulted and informed for each task. 

4. Ensure every task has a role responsible and a role accountable for it. 

5. No tasks should have more than one role accountable. Resolve any conflicts where there is more than 
one for a particular task. 

6. Share, discuss and agree on the RACI Matrix with your stakeholders before your project starts. 

 

 

86



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   47 | P a g e  

Appendix 2 – Finance Detail 

 

Cost profiles 

 
Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Totals

CHASC and CNS

Project Management agency consultant Assumes agency @ 3 days a week at £450 per day 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 £62,100

Local programme office support 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 1,742 £20,900

Volunteer navigators Coordinator 3 days a week @£25k annual equivalent -  potential additional staff member from 1 April 2017 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654 £19,848

Volunteer Navigators Training costs Room hire, refreshments, training materials etc. 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 £1,000

Volunteer Navigators Travel costs Assumes £0.45 per mile x 10 miles x 1 trip a week per referral 92 92 92 92 92 92 114 114 114 137 137 137 £1,304

Marketing / promotion Of the Community Navigator Service 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 £2,400

Voluntary / Charity provision Financial support to the voluntary sector for delivery of services as potential increased demand on these services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Investment in MDT co-ordinators Additional support requirements for MDT process, as increasing the number of users that require co-ordination 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Restructure of MDT  co-ordinators Assumes £1k impact per annum as per DC 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 £1,000

Training for new virtual model of delivery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

IT infrastructure costs Firewall issues etc. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Property costs Moving costs and impacts on rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

9,196 8,946 8,946 9,196 8,946 8,946 9,218 8,968 8,968 9,241 8,991 8,991 £108,552

Cost base 16/17

Total Costs  
 

Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Totals

CHASC and CNS

Project Management agency consultant Assumes agency @ 3 days a week at £450 per day finishing by the end of 17/18 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 5,175 £62,100

Local programme office support 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Volunteer navigators Coordinator 3 days a week @£25k annual equivalent -  potential additional staff member from 1 April 2017 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 £39,696

Volunteer Navigators Training costs Room hire, refreshments, training materials etc. 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 £1,000

Volunteer Navigators Travel costs Assumes £0.45 per mile x 10 miles x 1 trip a week per referral 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 229 £2,748

Marketing / promotion Of the Community Navigator Service 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 £2,400

Voluntary / Charity provision Financial support to the voluntary sector for delivery of services as potential increased demand on these services8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 8,625 £103,500

Investment in MDT co-ordinators Additional support requirements for MDT process, as increasing the number of users that require co-ordination4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 £50,004

Restructure of MDT  co-ordinators Assumes £1k impact per annum as per DC 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 £996

Training for new virtual model of delivery 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £5,000

IT infrastructure costs Firewall issues etc. 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £10,000

Property costs Moving costs and impacts on rents 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £5,000

42,037 21,787 21,787 22,037 21,787 21,787 22,037 21,787 21,787 22,037 21,787 21,787 £282,444

Cost base 17/18

Total Costs  
 

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Totals

CHAS and CNS

Project Management agency consultant Assumes agency @ 3 days a week at £450 per day, reduced to 1 day a week for latter 6 months of 16/17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Local programme office support 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Volunteer navigators Coordinator 3 days a week @£25k annual equivalent -  potential additional staff member from 1 April 2017 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 3,308 £39,696

Volunteer Navigators Training costs Room hire, refreshments, training materials etc. 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 250 0 0 £1,000

Volunteer Navigators Travel costs Assumes £0.45 per mile x 10 miles x 1 trip a week per referral 381 381 381 381 381 381 477 477 477 477 477 477 £5,148

Marketing / promotion Of the Community Navigator Service 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 £2,400

Voluntary / Charity provision Financial support to the voluntary sector for delivery of services as potential increased demand on these services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Investment in MDT co-ordinators Additional support requirements for MDT process, as increasing the number of users that require co-ordination4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 £50,004

Restructure of MDT  co-ordinators Assumes £1k impact per annum as per DC 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 £996

Training for new virtual model of delivery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

IT infrastructure costs Firewall issues etc. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

Property costs Moving costs and impacts on rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0

8,389 8,139 8,139 8,389 8,139 8,139 8,485 8,235 8,235 8,485 8,235 8,235 £99,244

Cost base 18/19

Total Costs  
 

87



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   48 | P a g e  

Saving Profiles 

 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

A&E admissions avoidance 0 83 165 165 165

NEL's avoidance 0 166 331 331 331

GP Appointments avoided 19 39 74 99 99

Care Home avoidance 0 0 4 9 16

Early intervention opportunities 16 34 65 86 86

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

A&E admissions avoidance -£          14,025£   28,050£   28,050£   28,050£   

NEL's avoidance -£          177,742£ 355,484£ 355,484£ 355,484£ 

Care Home avoidance -£          119£         10,068£   43,478£   94,218£   

Early intervention opportunities -£          20,421£   73,637£   159,573£ 267,087£ 

-£          212,307£ 467,239£ 586,585£ 744,839£ 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

GP Appointments avoided 19 39 74 99 99

Care Home avoidance 0 0 4 9 16

Early intervention opportunities 16 34 65 86 86

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

GP Appointments avoided -£          -£          -£          -£          -£          

Care Home avoidance -£          119£         10,068£   43,478£   94,218£   

Early intervention opportunities -£          20,421£   73,637£   159,573£ 267,087£ 

-£          20,540£   83,705£   203,051£ 361,304£ 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Levels of activity

A&E admissions avoidance 0 83 165 165 165

NEL's avoidance 0 166 331 331 331

£ benefit realisation from above activity

A&E admissions avoidance -£          14,025£   28,050£   28,050£   28,050£   

NEL's avoidance -£          177,742£ 355,484£ 355,484£ 355,484£ 

-£          191,767£ 383,534£ 383,534£ 383,534£ 

Totals

Levels of activity

£ benefit realisation from above activity

Total benefits 

Volunteer Navigators

Levels of activity

Total benefits from volunteer Navigators

£ benefit realisation from above activity

Total benefits from Community Health & 

Social Care

Community Health & Social Care

88



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   49 | P a g e  

Appendix 3 - Integrated Impact Assessment Tool - Stage 1 Proforma 

Area of Quality Impact Question Impact Likeli-

hood 

Score Stage 2 

req? 

Rationale for scoring 

Duty of Quality - 

Could the 

proposal impact 

negatively on: 

Compliance with the NHS Constitution? 1 1 1 No This is compliant with the NHS constitution. 

Partnerships? 1 3 3 No There should be an improvement in partnership working 
between all partners involved as this project aim is integration.  
There is a possibility that if there is an adverse event with a 
patient, partnerships could be affected. 

Safeguarding children or adults? 1 1 1 No Should improve safeguarding of adults as improving/enhancing 
quality and safety by removing duplication and provision of 
services by multiple organisations.  N/A for children. 

NHS Outcomes 

Framework –  

 

Could the 

proposal impact 

negatively on: 

Preventing people from dying prematurely? 2 1 2 No The aim of the project  is to reduce the risk of dying prematurely 
and by bringing services under one organisation and  working 
towards prevention there should be an improvement 

Enhancing quality of life? 1 1 1 No The project will enhance quality of life as the aim is to provide 
pro-active, co-ordinated care and support in the most 
appropriate environment for the patient as opposed to the 
reducing the risk of admissions to acute care.  

Helping people recover from episodes of ill health or 

following injury? 

1 1 1 No The project aims to make people feel empowered, capable of and 
engage in self-management of their health and social care so 
works to improve recovery 

Ensuring people have a positive experience of care? 1 1 1 No The project is focussing on delivering care centred on the person, 
ensuring they feel listened to, understand their care and that 
they feel involved. The other key delivery of the project is that 
care is consistent and co-ordinated. 

Treating & caring for people in a safe environment & 

protecting them from avoidable harm? 

5 1 5 No The project aims to keep people as fit and healthy as they can be 
in their own homes.  There therefore is a small risk that patient 
safety could be breeched. 

Access Could the proposal impact negatively on patient choice? 2 2 4 No With one organisation leading the system the offering will be 
equal across Wokingham.  There are patients who wish to be 
treated in the setting of their choice and they could still choose 
that option.  Patients and or carers could complain if their needs 
are not met 

Could the proposal impact negatively on access? 1 1 1 No There is an increase in access as this aims to streamline and join 
up pathways and organisations. 

Could the proposal impact negatively on integration? 1 3 3 No The project is based around integration of services and providers 
so should improve integration.  There is a possibility that an 
adverse event could affect integration. 

89



Vs 1.5 BW10 PID And Business Case Wokingham Community Health And Social Care Nov  2016 

Final Vs. 1.5, Rhian Warner, November 2016   50 | P a g e  

 

Duty of Equality  

 

Could the 

proposal impact 

negatively on: 

Age? 1 4 4 No The services are for over 18 year olds, therefore there is no 
access for patients under the age of 18, but there are already 
equivalent non-integrated services in place for children. 

Disability? 1 1 1 No There are no restrictions on disability 

Race? 1 1 1 No There are no race restrictions 

Religion or belief? 1 1 1 No There are no religious or belief restrictions 

Sex? 1 1 1 No There are no restrictions based on a patients sex 

Sexual orientation? 1 1 1 No There are no restrictions based on a patients sexual orientation 

Gender re-assignment? 1 1 1 No There are no restrictions based on a patients gender re-
assignment 

Pregnancy or maternity? 1 5 5 No The services do not deliver pregnancy or maternity services as 
these are provided by other services.  Pregnant or new mothers 
would not be excluded from accessing these services if they 
required them. 

Marriage & civil partnership? 1 1 1 No There are no restrictions based on a patient marriage or civil 
partnership 

 

Name of person completing assessment: Rhian Warner Date of assessment: 27th September 2016 

 

90



 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  

Forward Programme from June 2016 

 

Please note that the forward programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short notice.   

The order in which items are listed at this stage may not reflect the order they subsequently appear on the agenda.  

All Meetings start at 5pm in the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, unless otherwise stated. 

 91

A
genda Item

 51.



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PROGRAMME 2016/17 

 
DATE OF 
MEETING 

 
ITEM 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
REASON FOR 
CONSIDERATION 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER / 
CONTACT 
OFFICER 

CATEGORY 

9 February 
2017 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
dashboard  

To receive an update on 
performance 

To monitor performance  Health and 
Wellbeing Board  

Performance  

 Update on 
Disability Strategy 

To update the Board To update the Board Judith 
Ramsden, 
Director of 
People Services 

Performance  

 Updates from 
Board members 

To receive an update on the work 
of Board members 

To update on the work 
of Board members 

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

Organisation 
and governance 

 Forward 
Programme 

Standing item. Consider items for 
future consideration 

Democratic 
Services 

 

 
  

92



 

 
DATE OF 
MEETING 

 
ITEM 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
REASON FOR 
CONSIDERATION 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER / 
CONTACT 
OFFICER 

CATEGORY  

6 April 2017 Health and 
Wellbeing 
dashboard  

To receive an update on 
performance  

To monitor performance  Health and 
Wellbeing Board  

Performance  

 Updates from 
Board members 

To receive an update on the work 
of Board members 

To update on the work 
of Board members 

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

Organisation 
and governance 

 Forward 
Programme 

Standing item. Consider items for 
future consideration 

Democratic 
Services 

 

 
 
 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	42. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	47. Health and Wellbeing dashboard
	48. Better Care Fund Evaluation
	Better Care Fund Evaluation Scoring Template

	49. Berkshire Transforming Care Partnership - November 2016 - Update to Wokingham Health and Wellbeing Board
	50. Revised Project Initiation Document for Wokingham Community Health & Social Care (CHASC) - (Neighbourhood Clusters, Self-Care and Prevention) BCF 08 Project
	Project Initiation Document

	51. Forward Programme

